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Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003. The Group is the leading producer of fermentation-
based amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Asia. Our products are sold to food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN

countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan and several European countries. Most of our products

are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
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Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has undergoing continuous
expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group is currently
the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian region, and the
largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in Xiamen to focus on
developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group further acquired the
assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan Foods Company Limited,
which will be developed into its business operations center in the
PRC, signifying its determination and commitment to become a major
player in the PRC market. To ensure the Group has a stable supply of
starch and a strong production platform for starch related products,
Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November
2005. In December the same year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake
Enterprise Co., Ltd. was established and started production of GA
in April 2006. Shandong Vedan Snowflake will play a crucial role in
Vedan's global supply chain in the future, allowing it to meet the
demand and to stabilise prices of raw materials, hence facilitate its
business development strategy in the PRC.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

BE+-—A=+—-BHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2013 2012
us$’000 Us$'000 Difference
TEx F=T =2
Revenue U 2= 342,453 372,922 (8.2%)
Gross profit EH 48,089 61,500 (21.8%)
Profit for the year N v A 728 6,551 (88.9%)
Profit attributable to owners B ARMEEHN 1,488 7,342 (79.7%)
Basic earnings per share BRERZT 0.10 US centsEfl 048 US cents I
Diluted earnings per share BREERT 0.10 US centsEfl 048 US cents L
Final dividend proposed per share R G R BARR 2 - US centsEfll  0.145 US cents3 Al
Total dividends paid and EENPIE Y

proposed per share

Bk ERE

0.101 US cents3 Al

0.289 US centsZ L

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

BEAEERR, (B8)
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Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman® JE %3 1#
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Armed With Modern Technology And Sound Management, We

Have Successfully Created A Number Of Quality Products To Cater

To The Consumers’ Tastes And Demands.
BEHRREREHEERE RMFeZREEEER
A& BEERMAOKRME Ko

Long-established in Asia, Vedan International (Holdings) BRFHERR (3220%) AR ARILE M - AR
Limited is a premier manufacturer of fermentation-based AERIMTEESER - REANDAAZ
amino acids, food additive and cassava starch-based products. B ¥ %8 & &b 9 2N & £ E 7 o Bk B Y
Its prominent reputation has been built on the quality KMWEEREAEEENRBER L
manufacture of MSG, a key food additive lying at the heart of M T ER FARMPED N —+HEBEE
the unique tastes of Asia’s two billion consumers. The Group’s ~ Bf 2 &9 O Bk P {5 /5 = B 30 i1 » & B K 2
vision of the future is simple: to expand and enrich its markets ~ #) B 1Z : JAE KL hnsg M5 - R FE
across the Asian region while developing new products for the T A EHEEN T Ko

demand of consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Recovery of the global economy has proceeded at a slow pace during
2013 as uncertainties linger about the strength of the economic
rebound in many regions, including the U.S. and countries in the
European Union. The economies in emerging markets, in particular
Vietnam, were still stagnant with weak market sentiment which in
turn has eroded consumer confidence. The consequent conservative
consumption pattern has inevitably adversely affected the Group's
results during the reporting period. Aggravating the situation was
the modest increase in the price of raw materials during the year.
In particular the price of natural gas and energy continued to rise
in Vietnam, substantially pushing up production costs. Meanwhile,
the intense price competition among MSG industry players has
also affected the Group’s business development and squeezed its
overall profitability. Facing such serious challenges in both sales and
production, the Group’s focus of operations for 2014 is on securing
low cost raw materials, flexibly adjusting production operations to
enhance cost efficiencies, implementing energy saving measures
and stepping up sales and marketing efforts while developing new
products. These strategic directions can help alleviate the impact of
increasing energy prices on costs and the unfavourable conditions on
sales by reducing expenses and broadening the Group's sources of
income, thus enabling it to maintain profitability.

Looking at the Group's operation and profit in this year, the turnover
was US$342,453,000, a decrease of around 8.2% when compared
with the previous year. The decline was mainly attributable to market
competition which caused a turnover in the Group’s major markets
in Vietnam, ASEAN and Europe to drop by varying degrees. At the
same time, the rising prices of natural gas and energy in Vietnam,
the Group’s major production base, have substantially increased
the Group’s production costs. Thus, the gross profit of the Group
dropped by 21.8% year-on-year. Net profit was also lowered by
about 88.9% to around US$728,000.

08  vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BIBS (428%) R A =
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

In terms of geographical markets and segmental performance, the
most critical factor, the serious inflation and trade imbalance which
emerged in Vietnam, the Group’s major market, appears to be
improving while the country’s exchange rate has stabilised, thanks
to the fiscal policy of the Vietnamese Government. However, the
subsequent slowdowns in economic growth in the country and
international economic headwinds have further affected both its
exports and domestic consumption. The resulting unfavourable
operating environment has presented strident challenges for the
Group's operations, most notably its production operations within
the country. Although the Group has been focusing on strengthening
its distribution channels and enhancing its branding, the competition
centred on low prices among MSG peers has still affected the sales of
GA and bulk packaged MSG, resulting in a year-on-year drop of 2.5%
in the revenues in the Vietnam market. In our PRC operation, after a
period of production and sales integration, gross profit rose slightly.
In spite of this, owing to the persistently intense market competition
in the PRC, turnover has dropped by 4.6%. Besides, the economy
in Japan showed signs of a rebound and consumption demand
improved slightly, thus this market recorded a modest growth of
0.02% year-on-year. However, when compared to last year, the prices
of products in the ASEAN and European markets remained very low
due to fierce price competition. The Group has not been actively
engaged in competition solely on price as profitability remains its key
consideration. As such, sales of bulk packaged MSG in these regions
were seriously affected and revenues in the ASEAN region contracted
substantially by 40.2% when compared with the same period last
year.

As for the business of our products, adversely affected by the poor
sentiment and product price competition, the revenue of MSG, the
Group's principal product, recorded a year-on-year drop of 10.7%.
Although the prices of cassava and energy surged during the period,
the revenue of modified starch, another key product, rose slightly by
2.1% when compared to the corresponding period last year, as the
Group diligently strived to bolster its sales network. Supported by the
consistently stable demand in the face of the generally unfavourable
environment, specialty chemicals such as soda and hydrochloric acid,
the essential raw materials of industrial companies, managed to grow
by 12.6% over the same period last year. Benefitting from the greater
market demand, the performance of its fertiliser and feed products
achieved a year-on-year growth of 2.4%, thanks to our more
aggressive marketing activities during recent years. To tap the strong
demand for amylase in Vietnam, the Group’s new maltose plant built
last year has started a trial run. The new plant not only enhances the
production efficiency of maltose production, but also diversifies the
Group's starch business and ultimately creates a new revenue growth
driver.
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B LERBEEBE #ABANERBEREE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

In order to address the current unstable market and intense
competition, the Group has reviewed and enhanced the speed
and effectiveness of its procedures in monitoring and coping with
potential changes in the operating environment. In 2014, the key
area of focus in its operations is to promptly adjust to fluctuations
of raw materials prices so as to stabilise its production costs, as well
as diversify and expand raw material procurement strategy aimed
at minimising cost fluctuations and risks. As for the surging energy
costs, on top of implementing energy-saving initiatives, the Group
is also evaluating alternative energy solutions and has come up with
measures to maintain its competitiveness in production operations.
It has also continued to boost its research and development (R&D)
capabilities to improve production efficiencies and develop innovative
products to best leverage the cost control measures.

As for the Group’s business strategies, apart from bolstering its
presence in major markets and maintaining profit margins, the
Group has also planned to explore new markets while at the same
time expanding its sales network. To further develop its sales and
operations in Vietnam and the PRC, the Group intends to aggressively
strengthen its marketing strategies, as well as further extend
distribution and sales channels in order to realise the full potential of
the Group's sales network. At the same time, the Group is planning
to launch new products to complement current product lines, as
well as enhance its sales presence to boost its brand awareness. In
addition to actively expanding the starch business in the PRC, the
Group is also enhancing its branding efforts and its distribution
network as well as allocating more resources to maximise its
operational efficiency and evaluate its cost structure aiming at higher
cost savings. On the other hand, the Group is identifying potential
collaborative projects with partners that can extend its geographical
coverage, bolster its international exposure, and ultimately improve
efficiency while both broadening its revenue streams and boosting its
profits.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Under the prevailing unfavourable economic and operating
environment, the Group faces many challenges and difficulties.
To tackle the challenges and uncertainties, the Group has been
constantly conducting an analysis of its current situation as a prelude
to planning and setting strategic directions. Though it is impossible
to control and not easy to predict macroeconomic trends, we believe
that our prudent operational approach and strategies for market
expansion and branding can mitigate the impact from an adverse
macroeconomic turn. The management and all of our staff well
appreciate the careful attention to trends required during these
changing times. We believe that our prudent approach guided by
our innovative vision should help us create effective and successfully
execute operational and business development strategies over the
medium and long term to overcome the existing challenges and
explore new opportunities in order to bring our business to the next
level.

By Order of the Board
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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As a successful long-term player in a market with significant entry barriers, Vedan
International has distinct competitive advantages that add real value to its products.
With advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation technology, starch processing
conversion technology and chemical and electro-chemical technology, Vedan
International is developing new products which represent the latest breakthroughs in
industrial science and look set to be major profit drivers in the future.

KABBRARENEXATRES MEBERPEIEST RARKASBRNHRFE
SEMMEENBERERT HEAREZEE BHNITER (CE2EMER(LCES
FERN RABBRTEEREBEXRMENFER RARBNAERDNE S -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During 2013, the global economy has shown a modest
recovery. Among the world’s major economies, the US was
still afflicted by an increasing financial deficit. The country
mainly relied on the quantitative easing policy to stimulate
economic growth but no dramatic improvements have been
shown and the unemployment rate still hovered above 7%.
The country’s economic growth rate in 2013 was only 1.7%.
Similarly, Europe has been affected by a sovereign debt crisis
and was still coping with a recession. Its economic growth
rate in 2013 remained negative at about -0.4%. Japan, on the
contrary, benefitting from “Abenomics” saw a strong rebound
to its economy. Positive economic growth has been recorded
for four consecutive quarters and a decade-long deflation trend
was also alleviated. The depreciation of the Japanese yen has
led to a notable increase in exports, a rise in its stock market
and a general increase in the profit of its enterprises. The
overall economic growth rate is expected to reach around 2%.
As for the PRC, the country has entered into an adjustment
period in 2013 with excess production capacity and a drop in
the increase in consumption although the annual economic
growth rate was 7.7%. The operating environment of Vietnam
was stable in 2013 with inflation under control but borrowing
interest rates remained high. The currency exchange rate was
relatively stable and GDP growth was 5.42%. While it exceeded
the increase of 5.25% in 2012, it was below the target set by
the parliament of 5.5%, and lower than that of most of the
ASEAN countries including Cambodia (7.2%), Laos (7.8%),
Myanmar (6.9%) and Indonesia and Thailand (5.5%). This
laggard growth indicated that Vietnam’s consumption power
remained weak. A comparatively positive development was that
the economic growth of Vietnam increased quarter by quarter
from 4.76% in the first quarter to 6.04% in the fourth quarter.

14 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk f3 BB (325R) R A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

The Group's revenue during the period reached
US$342,453,000, a decline of 8.2% or US$30,469,000
year-on-year, mainly attributable to the sales decrease of
US$32,184,000 or about 11.9% in MSG/GA. As for sales
geographically, all regions experienced a drop in revenue except
Japan and Taiwan, with ASEAN member countries recording
the largest reduction. Revenue from ASEAN declined by
US$20,292,000 or about 40.2%. Gross profit in 2013 dropped
by US$13,411,000 or approximately 21.8% year-on-year to
Us$48,089,000. Gross profit margin decreased to 14.0% from
16.5% in the corresponding period last year while net profit
margin declined from 1.8% to 0.2%. Net profit amounted to
US$728,000, a decline of 88.9% or US$5,823,000 year-on-
year.

The overall declining profits were mainly attributable to the
substantial rises in the cost of natural gas in Vietnam and major
raw materials such as cassava, starch and molasses which in
turn caused production costs to rise. The related policies of
the Chinese government have caused consumption in dining at
restaurants to be substantially reduced. The overall MSG market
in the PRC was inevitably affected and showed a decline. As the
economy of Vietnam is also still recovering slowly, there was no
apparent growth in the overall demand for MSG in that country
as well, which also affected the rise in its price. The drop in
gross profit of MSG has also led to a reduction in the overall
gross profit of the Group. Despite that, other products such as
modified starch and specialty chemicals recorded mild growth
of 2.1% and a strong rise of more than 10% respectively.

Economists are concerned that the global environment may
face greater fluctuations and uncertainties in 2014. Thus, the
Group has implemented a number of proactive measures,
including developing alternative energy and carbohydrates
solutions and arranging flexible production according to market
demand, strengthening its brand and extending its market
reach. These initiatives are aimed at strengthening its position
as one of the market leaders and laying a foundation for
developing related consumer goods.

EBHRE (]\)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED N
2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS

(1) Sales Analysis by Market

» BRI
(=) WEHETH

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2013 2012 Difference
20135 2012 =R
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Area & &8 % &8 % *8 %
Vietnam il 168,934 49.3% 173,347 46.5% -4,413 -2.5%
Japan AR 79,967 23.4% 79,955 21.4% 12 0.02%
PRC HE 38,433 11.2% 40,282 10.8% -1,849 -4.6%
ASEAN member REKE
countries 30,220 8.8% 50,512 13.5% -20,292 -40.2%
Other regions HipihE 24,899 7.3% 28,826 7.8% -3,927 -13.6%
Total At 342,453 100.0% 372,922 100.0% -30,469 -8.2%
1. Vietnam 1. HETYS
The Group's profit was lower as consumer spending EMEHEEEBE NIRRT
power has not completely recovered and the energy ’i\@iﬂl YR B AN £k 2 1§
cost has continued to rise. Thus, it has cut the sales BT REMEERE R
of industrial MSG accordingly. Due to the disposal DITHERARBHHEE RAKE
of Veyu, which had mainly produced native starch in REFESEHEMABE
Gia Lai Province in Vietnam at the end of last year, ERENEEXRABRDAE
sales of this product also reduced substantially. As RO LR R R Y 52 28 RORIR D 88
a result, the Group's sales from Vietnam dropped EXEBRL AT —=F
by US$4,413,000 or approximately 2.5% in 2013, 5 7 b [ 3 & T 2£4,413,000
a lower decline than the 8.2% decrease in the ETLH2.5% BEREEBEW
Group's total revenue. Revenue in Vietnam was 8.2 % » g 3 [ 1 4 Y
US$168,934,000 with its contribution to total FH46.5% I8 £49.3% « & W &
revenue up from 46.5% to 49.3%. 168,934,000 JT ©
2. Japan 2. HAEmE5
Stimulated by Japan Prime Minister Shinzo Abe's ARZZE—=FEBFEEL

“three arrows” policy, economic conditions in Japan
have improved in 2013 with GDP growing for four
consecutive quarters. Despite the weak global
consumer purchasing power, the Group’s revenue
in Japan reached US$79,967,000, a marginal rise
of US$12,000 or approximately 0.02% year-on-
year. Revenue from the Japanese market accounted
for 23.4% of the Group's total revenue, up from
21.4% in the last corresponding period. The Group
mainly sells MSG followed by modified starch.

16  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Uk /3 BIBS (28%) R A =

EE RO =& BE]
T GDPEBEEIFR K KER
THRE -HEAZIHEBERE
NN AKR  BEEEB KA
[@ % W 3E79,967,0003 T °
[B Lb /N 32 AN12,000% JT 49
0.02% (h&EBE & W H21.4%
WE23.4%  FEBHE K
BE BUHEBRMRZ -
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2.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

3.

The PRC

Affected by the austerity measures and a slowdown
in economic growth, demand in the PRC has
dropped and market competition has become more
intense. To cope, major MSG enterprises have
tried to set competitive pricing and expand their
market share, which has put smaller companies
in operational difficulty. As sales of MSG have
decreased, revenue in the PRC dropped by 4.6% or
US$1,849,000 to US$38,433,000, accounting for
11.2% of total revenue, a higher proportion than
the 10.8% in 2012.

ASEAN member countries

In line with its strategic direction, the Group has
reduced the supply of some low margin industrial
MSG and focused more on the sales of its own
branded and small packaged MSG within ASEAN
member countries. Thus, revenue from this
market segment was US$30,220,000, down by
US$20,292,000 or approximately 40.2% from
US50,512,000 in 2012. Revenue from the ASEAN
member countries accounted for 8.8% of the
Group's total revenue, a notably smaller percentage
than the 13.5% recorded in 2012.

Other Regions

Revenue from other regions declined by
US$3,927,000 or approximately 13.6% to
US$24,899,000. Revenue from this market
accounted for 7.3% of the Group’s total revenue,
down from 7.8% in the corresponding period last
year. This was mainly attributable to the weak
economic conditions in Europe and the low prices
resulting from the price competition among industry
peers, as well as the reduction in sales of MSG and
starch.

BRSWH(E)
(=) TEHEDH (F)

3.

o [ 777 45

PEIE AR TR K
T8 -mHEHEF AR R EK
BABKIAREF TN EE
BERBAMBER X ERE
NRE A B ERE T
B EEHERERBHEER D
&£ B+ B[R & 438,433,000
%0 bt EERR 41,849,000

TL #)4.6%  RETIS(hEE
BEWIN2% SR T — =
F10.8% °

FEHKE BT

SEEXBEENZEEERE
B8 BT 5 R A 4 R (K
EFNITERARKE MBER
ERBERERNBEEKRE
RSHE MR EEKERET
#41830,220,000E 7T * b =
T — — 450,512,000 T HiE
20,292,000 T £740.2% ° &
B EEMISERE WL ER
AR T E BT ——F
13.5%P% £8.8% °

H s

H b5 2 W %824,899,0003%
T AEREEIRLE AT 8% % E
7.3% & WU 43,927,000
TL4913.6% ' £ Z 2 B R BUMN
THEBENSRART R R
KERS WHEERHDEET

7B
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued) = BROW(E)

(2) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) EmSBEEIN

The Group has disposed of Veyu, which mainly
produces native starch in Gia Lai Province in
Vietnam, at the end of 2012. Hence, the revenue
from this product decreased substantially by about
65.5% or US$4,250,000. Sales of modified starch
slightly increased by US$874,000 or about 2.1%
during the period. The proportion of native starch
and modified starch in total revenue was 12.9% in
2013, which was similar to the level in 2012.

18  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BB (425%) AR A =

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2013 2012 Difference
20135 20126 =R
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Product | &8 % &8 % *8 %
MSG/GA VSV 239,208 69.9% 271,392 72.8% -32,184 -11.9%
Modified starch/ BHRR/ X
Native starch R 44,234 12.9% 47,610 12.8% -3,376 -7.1%
Specialty chemicals FLEM 23,199 6.8% 20,608 5.5% 2,591 12.6%
Fertiliser and feed EREMER
products 26,736 7.8% 26,117 7.0% 619 2.4%
Others Hth 9,076 2.6% 7,195 1.9% 1,881 26.1%
Total &t 342,453 100.0% 372,922 100.0% -30,469 -8.2%
MSG and GA 1. BEREHHEEE
The Group has tentatively suspended almost all of EEELTEEHEAR
the supply of GA to local players in Vietnam and so B uBmBEAREE &
only US$678,000 of revenue was recorded, which £#678,000%€ 0tk £ F
was around 84.5% less than the corresponding B EIR D #84.5% - = F
period last year. In 2013, revenue from MSG —ZF KBEEAQEER
and GA operations reached US$239,208,000, #239,208,000% 7T * & &
approximately US$32,184,000 or around 11.9% 32,184,000E 7T 4I11.9% * =
lower than the same period last year. The decline ERAAMR TERWKRREIHE
was due to the drop of sales of GA and MSG for W HERKNME R
industrial use, in particular the EU and ASEAN MR- ZER D 25 H )\ K
where sales plummeted more than 80%. Other VA & B gt [ 8 g 22 A B S
areas such as Vietnam and the PRC also recorded BNERD - R EREEEE
moderate decreases. MSG accounted for 69.9% of 69.9% PR T —ZF W
total revenue, a lower proportion than the 72.8% 72.8% °
recorded in 2012.
Modlified starch/Native starch 2. EURE KRB

ZEZFRSEHEMRE
EREFENEERABRD BE
B IR R+ B K SRR R K
2 e & %84,250,0003 7T * 49
65.5% + & MR D 2B 9 B B RS
18 H1874,0003 L #92.1% ©
W12.9%  #FHF =T —ZFK
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued) = BROW(E)

(2) Sales Analysis by Product (continued) (Z) EmEED W (&)
3. Specialty chemicals/Fertiliser and feed products 3 HBILESR - PEHESD

Sales volume of specialty chemicals including
hydrochloric acid, soda and bleach increased
during the period, which boosted revenue by
12.6%, or US$2,591,000 to US$23,199,000, with
its contribution to total revenue up from 5.5% to
6.8%.

Although sales of fertiliser and feed in ASEAN
member countries and Vietnam decreased, the
revenue in Taiwan increased, thus the revenue
of these products amounted to US$26,736,000,
2.4% or US$619,000 higher than the same period
last year. Its proportion of the total revenue of the
Group climbed from 7.0% to 7.8%.

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

Cassava

The overall production volume of fresh cassava in 2013
was 9,740,000 tonnes, similar to the level of last year.
The plantation area across the country exceeded 544,000
hectares, down by 1.4% when compared with 2012.
Its production capacity was 17.9 tonnes per hectare, a
slight increase of 1.5% when compared with 2012. In
2013, 3,100,000 tonnes of cassava and cassava-related
products were exported valued at US$1,110,000,000, a
drop of 25.9% year-on-year. Nonetheless, Vietnam is the
second largest exporter of cassava-related products in
the world, just behind Thailand. During the period, the
average price of cassava increased by about 10% year-
on-year. The price is expected to be persistently high after
the governments of Thailand and Vietnam implement
biomass-energy policies encouraging the increased use of
cassava for conversion into alcohol.

Molasses

The main source of molasses for the Group’'s factory
in Vietnam is from Asia. However, as the demand for
biomass energy from Asia is set to continuously rise,
the export volume of molasses in Asia has contracted to
its lowest level since 2005. The volume was 1,500,000
tonnes in 2013, a significant drop from the 2,300,000
tonnes in 2012. Although the supply continued to exceed
the demand for molasses on a global basis in 2013/2014,
the price of molasses still increased year-on-year.

HARLLER (BRERE- &
T ZHK)HEESE N &
3% 23,199,000 T 1 &
%2,591,0003 7T #912.6%
fhEEEWA5.5%E M=
6.8% °

MR &R E A R B B
FEERD BIE A &S R
hn - B9 & W BH#£26,736,000
Exc-RENDEBEMES B
619,000F 7T #92.4% ' 1
SEEWELEMRT.ONESE
7.8% °

= XERH RE#ER
(—) A%

ZE-FHREEARZERAKEN
EER FFLIAERANES 2974
B - —_ T -F2EEBEAEZMA
BiES4 4% B NE BT —ZFf
LLFE1.4% - EEBEER ALE17.9MF - 6l
TR FA I 5%  c KRER
AREBHZ-T—-=FHOE3108LQ
W ©EIEITEET R TE
25.9% BHENEERE-AKRE
MARZRGHOE ERXRE-BHR
NEFHYERLE EF ERL10%
TERTARKEEZE R - BE BRI
KHPRE  NEEEBBLLAASHE
RAEEAEZEBESFELT

b
SEUEEATERENRETIMM
[ - 18 A 20 N A E AL R ) BB Sk 4B
B ENEEHOESHECENE
AT RAFRNKEKE =%
—CEARISEBEERN T ——4F
H23E B -HARIRERENR=F
—= /T NFEEEEKRRBR
BRZERDALEFRAB LS
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3. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(3)

Energy

The cogeneration factory of Vietnam Vedan has started
replacing heavy oil with natural gas for power generation
starting from 2003, while the price of the latter has
gradually climbed in recent years. The price of natural
gas has risen again by about 20% in 2013. On the other
hand, the electricity cost in Vietnam also increased year-
over-year due to the rise in costs of natural gas, coal and
various transportation fees. According to statistics, the
electricity cost in Vietnam had been adjusted upward six
times from 2009 to 2013 for an accumulated increase
of around 50%. In early 2014, Vietnam Electricity
(EVN) again adjusted the electricity cost by 7% and it is
expected that the price of natural gas and electricity costs
in Vietnam will continue to rise in the future.

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In response to the Central Bank of Vietnam'’s numerous
moves to decrease the interest rate on Vietnam Dong
deposits during the period under review, the Group
utilised part of its deposits denominated in Vietnam Dong
to repay the borrowings in US dollars. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had cash and bank deposits of
Us$46,773,000, which was approximately US$3,181,000
or about 6.4% lower than the end of 2012. With the
aim of enhancing energy facilities, the Group invested
in related equipment, total bank borrowings therefore
increased by US$11,940,000, or around 35.9% to
US$45,159,000, of which 97.8% was denominated in
US dollars and the remaining 2.2% denominated in New
Taiwan dollars. Short-term bank borrowings increased
by US$15,133,000 or 54.1% to US$43,085,000, while
middle-to-long-term bank borrowings decreased by
US$3,193,000 or about 60.6% to US$2,074,000. The
proportions of short-term and middle-to-long-term
bank borrowings were 95.4% and 4.6% respectively.
With increased bank borrowings and reduced bank
deposits, the net interest income during the period was
US$239,000, lower than that of US$246,000 in 2012.

20  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited &/ BIBS (425%) R A =
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4.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)
Trade receivables dropped US$10,962,000, or around
26.3% to US$30,741,000, and around 68.3% of
them were due within 30 days. Inventory amounted to
US$115,202,000, an increase of US$24,106,000 (around
26.5%) when compared with that of 2012. The majority
of inventory was raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods. The increase in inventory of raw materials
was based on the abundant supply of raw materials of
agricultural products and stable raw material costs.

In light of the increased borrowings, the gearing ratio
(total borrowings to total capital ratio) was 14.3%,
which was higher than 10.9% at the end of last year.
Net gearing ratio (total borrowings less cash and deposits
to total capital ratio) was -0.5% due to slightly higher
deposits over total borrowings. Current ratio was
maintained at the level of 2.8 which is similar to that as
at the end of last year.

(2) Capital Expenditure
During the period, capital expenditure amounted
to approximately US$8,279,000, approximately
US$1,064,000 or about 11.4% less than the amount of
US$9,343,000 in 2012.

EXCHANGE RATE

The exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong has remained stable
since 2011 being maintained at VND20,828 to US$1. On
28 June 2013, the Government adjusted the VND/US$ rate
downward by 1% to VND21,036 to US$1, the first depreciation
in two years. Foreign exchange transactions are limited to
within the rate plus or minus 1% by the Central Bank. The
stable Vietnam Dong-US dollar exchange rate in 2013 was
mainly attributable to the controlled inflation, trade surplus
and higher foreign exchange reserves, as well as the increasing
confidence in the Vietnam Dong. It is expected that the
exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong will continue to be stable.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, Shanghai Vedan,
Shandong Vedan and Xiamen Maotai focus on the sales in
China’s domestic market. During the period, the value of RMB
appreciated by about 3%.

’

MO (#8)

(=) RBESMMBER (E)

JEUE SR 530,741,0003 7T * R
410,962,000 JT © #926.3% * 30K
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115,202,000%( 0 Lt =T ——FK
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6. DIVIDEND

Due to the decrease in profit during the year under review and
the payment of a dividend of 0.101 US cents per share made in
the interim period, the Board of Directors does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year under review.

7. PROSPECTS

1. In 2014, many uncertainties about the economic growth
in Vietnam and the PRC markets remain. The overall
economies in both places are expected to grow albeit
at a slow pace. The Group is placing a high priority
on cost reduction in a chance to achieve profit. It
will also continue to enhance production efficiency,
including achieving synergies between two production
bases in Shanghai and Xiamen in the PRC, continuous
improvement of production processes and stringent
control over expenses.

2. The Group will continue to execute its market penetration
strategy for further business expansion in Vietnam and
the PRC by allocating more resources, restructuring its
product lines, optimising sales channels and enhancing
brand value.

3. Bolstering new product development efforts will be an
ongoing strategic focus of the Group. In light of the
market demand, the Group will strengthen its existing
beverage business by introducing new flavours and
products. Moreover, it will enhance marketing of products
for which it is a distributor, through its existing marketing
channels while leveraging the advantage of agricultural
products and raw materials in Vietnam to develop highly-
processed products.

22 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 EIBE (258) AR A F
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7.

PROSPECTS (continued)

4.

Boosting procurement efficiency, better identifying
industry trends and collecting market information
and lowering the unit procurement prices will also be
important priorities for the Group. Meanwhile, the Group
will strive to diversify its procurement sources to build a
more complete supply chain so as to create a onestop
operation covering R&D, procurement, production and
sales.

Fuel and electricity costs of the production base in
Vietnam are expected to rise continuously and the
Group has adopted appropriate countermeasures to
alleviate the impact of these rising costs. Energy-saving
initiatives and alternative initiatives for changing fuel at
our manufacturing facilities will be the most important
operational focus of the Group.

The Group has set 2014 as a critical year for “preparing
to sprint again”. It has formulated plans to fully
strengthen and reinforce the foundation of various
aspects of our operations, including enhancing talent
development, boosting organizational strengths,
improving ability to encounter operational changes and
implementing partial restructuring and transformation of
operations.

t B2 (#&)
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a group of core products

with widespread applications and strong brand recognition, one of the Group’s most
important and well-guarded assets. Its renowned “Vedan"” brand MSG, for example, is
considered essential throughout the food processing industries across Asia for its role
in enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys a huge and constantly
growing market throughout Vietnam, the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United
States.

RABBROKRABRR —AERBEZNMmEANEESNER RRESEERNEE
Z— BBt R e [ BRAE - sES MR RMER  ERMARSARMAAK T
DS WRMINTER RN SR ZAMF MR B REBEXR  BAMN
REBEMSTEFRYNHEEER-
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEBRLAAMEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 71, our Chairman. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial Vocational High
School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately 51 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry and is one of the founders of the
Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is responsible for
formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 59, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 38 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Vedan
Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International
Limited. Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan
Culture and Education Foundation, the Chairman of Chunghwa Real
Property Research Association and the supervisor of Taichung Culture
& Education Fondation. Mr. YANG, Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree
from Xiamen University in the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 56, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
Group's operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from
Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved
in the development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam
since 1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and
President of Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Billion Power Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is also the Chairman of Taiwan Amino Acid
Manufacturers Association and Honorary Chairman of Taiwan Food
GMP Development Association. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 27 years’
working experience in the MSG industry

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 50, an Executive Director and a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and also the President of Dan Lian Biotechnology
Corporation. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 17 years’
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 54, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Chou had approximately 32 years’ working experience in the food,
beverage and consumer products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is
a director and Vice President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Maotai and Concord
Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou also holds directorship
in Ve Wong Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) since 28 June 2006.
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BEE SREEERATMESN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 60, a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Maotai. Mr. HUANG is also
the Vice President of Taiwan Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from the
department of accounting and statistics of the National Taichung
Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately
36 years' experience in administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 53, a Non-executive Director. Mr. CHOU is
the Supervisor of Taiwan Vedan. Mr. CHOU is also a Supervisor of
Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the director and legal
consultant of Wincome Incorporation and he has over 21 years of
experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU obtained his Bachelor of
Law degree from Soochow University, Master of Law degree from
East China University of Political Science and Law and Doctorate of
Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 52, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also
a director of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui
Industrial Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013). Mr. CHAO
has approximately 21 years' experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 53, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. KO graduated with a
Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and
subsequently obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting
from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr. KO has been the executive
partner of Weyong International CPAs & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO is also the Independent
Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co.,Ltd. (an
emerging-stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation)
and Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. KO is currently a director of
Taichung Season Arts Education Foundation, Taiwan.
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BEE SHEEERATMESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 54, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State
University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan
University. Mr. CHEN is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing
Research and Investment Corporation. He has more than 26 years
of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice
Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Group on 28 December 2012. Mr. HSIEH obtained a master degree
in management from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan and
obtained a doctor degree in business management from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is presently the vice-
principal and a professor of the Business Administration Department
of University of Dayeh University, Taiwan and a professor of the
Business Administration Department of University of Chung Yuan
Christian University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is also the supervisor of
Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation, the independent director
of Y.C.C. PARTS MFG. CO. LTD. (a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation) and the representative of legal entity
as director of First Commercial Bank, the member of remuneration
committee of Long Bon International Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and the supervisor
of Weshare Education & Charity Fund. He was the supervisor of
Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. HSIEH has approximately 21
years’ working experience in the business management, strategic
management and technology management field.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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EE SREERRLATAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 64, our Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Strategy Officer of Vedan Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the
National Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance.
Mr. HSIEH is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. HSIEH has approximately 35 years of finance management
and banking experience. Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial
institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam including International Bank
of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr. HSIEH was also a general
manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh City Branch. Prior to joining
us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in Gia Hen International Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 48, our Deputy Chief Financial Officer and the
Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the finance
functions of the Group. Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon,
major in finance and marketing, and holds a master degree in
business administration from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined
Vedan Group in 1993, and was the vice manager of business and
foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special assistant to the
chairman, project manager of finance department of Taiwan Vedan
as well as the manager of the Group’s Taiwan branch. Mr. NI has full
qualification in finance, marketing and executive administration, and
has accumulated approximately 21 years of working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 50, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 24 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 63, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company’'s amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 26 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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EX SREEBRLAAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 52, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company's
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 23 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 51, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 25 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. LIAO, Ruei-Hsing, 54, is the General Manager in charge of
the Group’s China operations. Mr. LIAO holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from National Chengchi University. In the
past 23 years, he had held different senior executive positions in sales
and management in various multinational companies such as Coca-
Cola, Pepsi-Cola, Sara Lee and Bestfoods in Taiwan, the PRC, and the
Philippines.

Mr. LIN, Yu, 55, Vice President of Shanghai Vedan, is responsible for
sales and marketing planning. A graduate of Taipei Municipal Jianguo
High School, Mr. LIN joined Taiwan Vedan in 1989 first as a sales
executive, and then was promoted to sales manager. He started with
Shanghai Vedan Foods in 1994, and made it to the position of Vice
President in Sales. Mr. LIN has over 27 years of sales management
experience in the food production industry.
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EE SREERRLATAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 40, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 13 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 38, has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company from 1 April 2012. Ms. WONG is currently
a senior manager of the corporate services division of Tricor Services
Limited (“Tricor”). Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. WONG worked for Ernst
& Young and Tengis Limited in Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is a chartered
secretary and an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Ms. WONG has over 15 years of experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted
by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by Mr. YANG, Tou-
Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible
for leading the Board of Directors in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2013, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-Executive Directors (“NED"”) and 4 Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board
considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independence to the Group.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’s primary
purpose is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year and the
Directors’ attendance is shown in the table on page 35. The NED and
INEDs may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions.
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SEEARE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-
Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, all Independent
Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his
valuable experience in reviewing financial statements and evaluating
significant control and financial issues of the Group who among
themselves posses a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession, commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 30
to the accounts and details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are set
out in the Report of Director.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”). Such policy aims to set out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates of
directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would consider
a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and
industry experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
gender and other characteristics.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the

code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) and Written Employee
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D.3. MEFTEL A

Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and  #%°

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE BRHEICE
Attendance/Number of Meeting
HER/SERY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezg EHES L FMzEg RAZEE REAFAS
Executive Directors HTES
Yang, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) R (L) 3/4 N/ATE B N/ATE 0N 11
Yang, Cheng BIE 3/4 N/ATR 3 A N/AT 3 A N/AT 3 A 0/1
Yang, Kun-Hsiang (C£O) iR (77 #%) 4/4 N/ATIE B N/ATE N/ATE B 11
Yang, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 N/ATE B N/ATE N/ATE B 0/1
Yang, Kun-Chou byl 4/4 N/ATE B N/ATiE N/ATE B 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Huang, Ching-Jung HEER 4/4 N/ATR i £ 11 N/ATNE 0/1
Chou, Szu-Cheng BEEE 4/4 N/ATE A N/AZN 38 A N/AAN 33 A 01
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Chao, Pei-Hong HIER 4/4 212 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ko, Jim-Chen ffkiE 4/4 112 1/1 1/1 11
Chen, Joen-Ray [ 4/4 22 11 11 0/1
Hsieh, Lung-Fa EiEES 3/4 212 N/ATE N/AT 8 0/1
Notes: B 5

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung authorized Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang to exercise the 1.
voting right on the second board meeting. Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized

Mr. YANG Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting right on the third board

meeting. Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa authorized Mr. KO, Jim-Chen to exercise

the voting right on the fourth board meeting.

2. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung authorized Mr. KO, Jim-Chen to chair the 2.

Nomination Committee meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provisions A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
of the Company has developed and refreshed their knowledge and
skills by reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory
updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to the company secretary.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 OF THE LISTING
RULES OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company has complied with the provisions of the CG Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing Rules on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange during the reporting period.

In respect of code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code, Mr.
HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, the Non-executive
Directors and Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, two of
the Independent Non-executive Directors were not in the position to
attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2013 due to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for
a specific term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung
and Mr. CHAOQ, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and
Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and
Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Mode Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate of approximately
US$340,000 and US$25,000 to the external auditor for their audit
and non-audit services respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The Statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 54.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Directors conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. HSIEH,
Jau-Hwang, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionst(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

38  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (25%) AR A F

BRBABRRFIXERRE LRHER
B9 4 F1

BRERROMEREN RERAE L 87
EXRFHE(BREZEANESR) SN —ABL
RERREZ-RELTARA AERZBRAE
HARBREBARBBERESTARR  MRERR
BRBENRBARRRGETNERANRA REE
B BX PR A o

REAAFRAGEIZAN RNEEER A R
FETORARBHEBRA (BERARA R
RREG L2 RAE) T2 — R PEA B R
BERBEBAARREESAWERHERR
KOBREEFSARBRRBIAE UREEH
ERFEANTAEER BEEATENEZ %
EXREMEAANRT - HEFSRARNEZEK
BT HREREABAS AEZERMHAL
ARTTARGEA R E  ME2ZRKHAL
REsaRFARAREMABELENMARMX
ERARAMESZBRMHALIEHBEE-

MEBAARRESSRHETMAER RRANUE
77 AR A R AR



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CONTACT DETAILS BiEE

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned MRERAIH LiliEHHBERKFT TRHERXE ¢
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, Mok BEZRANBER1835%
183 Queen’s Road East, & FH L5442
Hong Kong
(with attention to the Board of Directors) (FBEREFEW)
Fax: (852) 2528 3158 BFH: (852) 2528 3158
Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com B - vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send A®EE BREVEBCEZATENEZEENR
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or Ak AR EH (BB R ME) K EAKESR
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their B3 % Fifisptlt - WIREHREN 2R HEER
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect N EMER  LMlEBEFEBWR - NARAIEE
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by IRBREAERTEHBEREEL -

law.

LOOKING FORWARD RE

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards ~ AEEEGEE RS HT ECEEAKFE MES
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary &8 HIRENFIEF M  AERETE BB A
actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the CG Code 28 H) (B EE AT XX -

introduced by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2013 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 58.

The Board has resolved not to recommend for shareholders’ approval
at its forthcoming annual general meeting the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 0.145 US
cents per ordinary share).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 15 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December, 2013, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company's shareholders are set out in Note 16 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed shares during the year ended 31
December 2013.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 16 to the accounts.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group purchased less
than 28% of its goods and services from its five largest suppliers
and sold less than 28% of its goods and services to its five largest
customers. At no time during the year, did a director, an associate
of a director or any shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had an interest in the share capital of any of the
five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 3,647 employees,
3,324 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 309 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 14 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group's
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Yang, Cheng

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Yang, Chen-Wen
Yang, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
Huang, Ching-Jung
Chou, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chao, Pei-Hong

Ko, Jim-Chen

Chen, Joen-Ray

Hsieh, Lung-Fa
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According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen and Mr.
Chen, Joen-Ray will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 31.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@) As at 31 December, 2013, the interests of Directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO"), were as follows:—

BEBEARRE) 2 EEBERERIES7T(N)E B E
SECBIERE - AEEEERERRLTEBR
RARIEERREFAE EHERT -FIAZS
EEREERREEERET-

EEREREEREE

EELRREEENMEFHNE26E318 -

EEREp - HRKROREAEECEEN

HE

(@ MNZB—=F+-A=+—0 X2 7E
ERARANEEMAEERE (FERF
H R EIEGGIEXVED) 2 B - AR 1D
MEEFEFTREA BN —

Interests in shares

R 2

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares HARATE BT
4 54 TEREE BB
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
SRS E controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)
REZES ¥ ER (BEE1&3)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIERAE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)
REZFES 2 ¥ ER (FI3E2%3)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
ERELE EnEA A
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

HIEREE

BEREEA
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Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited
("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King

International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the
169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been
granted such rights.

B

1. BEEEEBRITEIESITMEKInG
International Limited ([King International ] ) it&
W=D 2 —HRRE-GHREAERMERA
#King International#§ A 2 169,730,196 A 1%
BRI EA R -

2. 5 1E S E B RETTIR 3% H17T{E King International
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7 King International#4 2169,730,196 8 &~
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 June, 2003, the Share Option Scheme was approved by
shareholders under which the Directors may, at their discretion, offer
any employee (including any executive director of the Company) of
the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to
the terms and conditions stipulated in the two schemes.

No option had been granted or exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme has expired in June 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2012.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 31 May 2012.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou's appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

44  vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk fEIBE (3258) AR A A

MR fEat

ZER=FAAT=A BRESHEBRE
o EEAURBEAAEENEIMES (2
RERAAARBITES) ROBEE REZW
TRRE B St B A R R AR T REB AR R R M AR ©

MmEREFEEN T —=FAHH-

EER¥BESH

BREELLE BIELRE BHELEERBRXE
EEDRIEARRT YR _TE=F A+t
BAM NFRB=F 2 RGHE %5 RBEH
FBANEREBZRFEN BIEEP—FRYE
FHERMINEREABRAS —TEHT
D=8 EE BRI -

—F

— =

B3N S A B AR R R AT S AR TS 15 3%
——F=ANBRBEEFHR=F-

ERREERBBRALECHEERARARIZL
RIBR=FRNA-TLREN VT RE—F
2R HE  ZERBBRAIREREEZF L
B BEER-HROSFREREINERE
ARER S - BB TR —(EAEEBEMAL
1 AR5 68 5 o

ABREECRARBTLAR=FZRE %
FBHIE-ZFRA=ZTHERER BHZ=
FoRLERRARNAANREEHHE(TE
FERATH (RBME ) & im i 2 DA AT LA & T 13
EBRBHRFHER —F - WARALAE
AN AR B REH - BIBR 1% 15 70 IR 7%
FZRATHREMNECREDR (BBERTE)
[ERMEE L - REERERA BEEZRER
HERAED—HRAETEL—EAZSEEANT A
ke



Report of Directors

EEERE

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April, 2012.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month's notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2012.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three year commencing on 28 December
2012.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December, 2013, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted

continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

HEREXS
ERACEROERAIR ([BE%RAI]) 2XSH

HEZZ—=F+-A=+—BLFE £AQF
HMEFERRERLEAEALEERIET IR
S MZERHBENABT EMRAE14AE R
BRANEREZHBERERS  ARANBERE
THRAEVAEHNEREHBEEE:

Note US$'000
B 5 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan maEKRAIEEE D (i) 2,865
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEERALH (if) 2,268
Taiwan Vedan EMZEE
C.  Agency commission income received C. WEaEKRSHRIE (iii) 25
from Taiwan Vedan HaA
Agency commission expense paid to A A ER AR (iii) -
Taiwan Vedan MeRx
Notes: b
(i) The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”), (i) AEBZRAAEBERSRENBEAR (AEHE

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan.
On 23 December 2011,

entered into an agreement in respect of the sales of such products by

the Company and the Taiwan Vedan Group

the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2014 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the
relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate
amount of sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not
exceed the maximum cap of US$3,000,000 for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the
sale of goods to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales

Agreement will generate additional income to the Group.

US$2,865,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$3,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 23 December 2011.
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(iii)

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 23 December 2011, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2014. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's future business
developments.

US$2,268,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 23 December 2011.

Each of Taiwan Vedan and the Company has been acting as the sole
and exclusive agent of the other party to sell, distribute, supply and/
or provide the products that are produced or proposed to be produced
by the Group from time to time to the customers in Vietnam, ASEAN
countries and the PRC or in Taiwan (as the case may be). On 23
December 2011, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement (“Agency Agreement”) in respect of such transactions for a
term of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014. At the
relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate
amount of commission to be received by each of the Group and the
Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum cap of US$150,000
and US$80,000 respectively for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the Group will continue
to benefit from the transactions as the Group will receive additional
commission income, and, it will also continue to benefit from the
transactions in respect of additional sales to customers in Taiwan which
may not be satisfied by the production capacity of, or the available
products from, the Taiwan Vedan Group.

US$25,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of commission
received by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
which has not exceeded the relevant maximum cap of US$150,000 as
disclosed in the previous announcement dated 23 December 2011.

(iii)

AERAEBERRAAEBIRMAE TRITE®E
RE-R_T——F+=_A=+=0 KQda
HAEEKARaERNSERAERIREZS
R tHE BT ——F—A—RE_Z
—MFEF+_A=+—HI AH=F ( KT
EipaEl ) AR AQRE R BT
YEBEEMZREBEEETIEBBHEE
T-NE+ A=+ AL=EMREERE
2 &= EMR2,500,0005% - EEREREE
NEBERGSRMZE BEAEEZ RREK
BHRAEM

RBEE-_ZT-—=F+_A=+—BILHKF
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Transactions with Shandong Xue Hua Bio-chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Xue Hua")

On 22 December 2005, Ordino Investments Pte Ltd (“Ordino”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Xue Hua entered into
a joint venture contract to set up a joint venture company, Shandong
Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“JV Company”) in the PRC.
Upon the establishment of the JV Company, the JV Company
becomes a 70% non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xue Hua, which holds 30% of the equity interest in the JV Company,
becomes a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Ordino and the JV
Company entered into the following transaction with Xue Hua, a
connected person of the Company which constituted continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

REREMECIRGAERLAT (B 2

F)Ordino Investments Pte Ltd ([Ordino ] ) £
TVABRRH ERBEKIAERAFILE
REXEEEERAR ([AERR]) -KIZA
BARNE  AERRIRARNRBIBEET0%EZE 2
E2EMBRAR SHEANFEEAEDQFIE30%K
HCARE FTRBIEI4AT  KAKRAR ZE
ATLe

o N E

TEREF A=+ =0 ARFEWES

ol D KR

HE-_T—=F+-_A=+—HLIFE 0rdino
RESRTHARNAZHAEANTSEET TS
Re MZEXHBREEST EMBRBE4AE
MR AEREZFERERS

Note RMB'000
bz AR®EF T

A. Purchase of certain raw materials A EERRIMBREEEST (i) 126
by the JV Company from Xue Hua R K

Notes: P&

(i) The JV Company has been purchasing certain raw materials (including (i) AENAEZRASEBEETREME (BEA
GA, steam, electricity, starch and sulfuric acid) from Xue Hua. On 23 Al -ER BN BOEREB) R2F——
December 2011, Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered into F+—-_A=-+=H" 0OrdinoFHEKLE LA A
an agreement in respect of the purchase of such raw materials by the MEERRNBILBEZSERMBT L H#
JV Company from Xue Hua (“Raw Materials Purchase Agreement”) for (ITERMBRBEHE]) SGHHE T ——F

a term of three years from 28 December 2011 to 27 December 2014
(with the JV Company’s right to renew for successive terms of three
years each until the end of the term of the JV Company subject to
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules).
At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total
aggregate amount of the raw materials to be purchased by the JV
Company from Xue Hua pursuant to the Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement will not exceed the maximum cap of RMB15,000,000
for each of the three financial years ending 27 December 2014. The
Directors are of the view that such transactions will provide cost benefits

to the Group for its GA and MSG manufacturing businesses.

RMB126,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of the
raw materials purchased by the JV Company from Xue Hua for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of RMB15,000,000 as disclosed in the previous

announcement dated 23 December 2011.
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 46 to 49 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The Company's auditor concluded that based on the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company.

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

d. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in
the previous announcement dated 23 December 2011 made
by the Company in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December, 2013, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BEMRE
ARREBERARNKFASHS AL BERSL
BEERTE ERAQRARLIARBRREE
Fitn o

FERRREMZEGRNKE

BEARQAGRA - R_E2—=F+=-A=+—8"
BEXAHEEARAEET R RRTHRABHE
wmIN AT ALTRARERDFHEEREEFESF R
HE M EXVEBE2RFEIND A2 IEXBRAR
AHWBEORER  SIARRTREES REE K
BIZE336IKATTFE < B e Ay i

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares HAERATE
=g 514 ZER#A BITROBDI L
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 460,237,609 30.22%
Ema A (Note 1)
(PfF3ET)
Taiwan Vedan Interest held by its controlled 460,237,609 30.22%
BT corporation
REZSZ ¥ ER
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
ERHAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BERHAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%

§37 2PN
Notes:
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 460,237,609

shares held by Billion Power.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2013, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group’s controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio™).
Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan. In the
Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the Group's
products the sales of in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer
25 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

_a
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 137, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

§
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2013 2012
—E—=fF T fF
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 7 FTEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Land use rights - Hb {5 A A 6 2,205
Property, plant and equipment M BRE N 7 140,626
Intangible assets EEE 8 12,226
Long-term loan and receivables REER & EWRIA 13 134
Investment in an associate R—HEBERR 2
®E 10(a) 3,042
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE 19 58
Total non-current assets IREBEELE 158,291
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 12 91,096
Trade receivables U E SRR 13 41,703
Amount due from the non-controlling FEU— KB A Al
interest of a subsidiary RN 2 FRIB 1,405
Short-term loan to an associate LT —EBEA R
HHER 10(b) _
Prepayments and other receivables TET FIE R
H h g WoskoE 13 9,339
Current income tax recoverable BN EA A U [0l R 1S 41
Restricted cash PR B RS 14(b) -
Short-term bank deposits HERITER 14(a) 7,387
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEYD 14(a) 42,567
193,538
Non-current assets held for sale REREERDEE 7(i) 1,900
Total current assets FBEELAE 195,438
Total assets EE#E 353,729
EQUITY En
Equity attributable to owners of EABEEBA
the Company EhER
Share capital [N 15 15,228
Reserves &
— Proposed final dividend — BRI E 16, 26 2,205
- Others —HAfth 16 254,977
272,410
Non-controlling interest e IR 2 (1,010)
Total equity ERBE 271,400
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——fF
Note uss$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEETT FZET
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings HRITEE 18 5,267
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHEE 19 6,180
Provision for long service payment REIAR % & B 1,262
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERAE 12,709
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JETE SRR 17 23,113
Accruals and other payables EAERR
H h & 1+ 51008 17 15,732
Amount due to a related party e —%&
EREALRIA 34(d) 323
Bank borrowings HRITEE 18 27,952
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTB i amE 2,500
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 69,620
Total liabilities EERH 82,329
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 353,729
Net current assets RBEERE 125,818
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBER 284,109

The financial statements on pages 55 to 137 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014 and were signed

on its behalf.

HNESEDBTAZYBRRCEEFEN T WUF A _THASHIHTIALRRES-

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
B gk

Director Director

BE BE

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
Note US$’000 Us$'000
B 7 FEEE FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets mEE . 8 2,619
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 9(a) 166,030
Investment in an associate R—HEBERRZ
& 10(a) 3,308
Loan to a subsidiary LT —HANBRAAZ
BE% 9(b) -
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 171,957
Current assets REEE )
Loans to subsidiaries BTHBRAA ZER 9(b) 8,453
Amounts due from subsidiaries J7E ST B BB R A 3 IE 9(b) 48,335
Short-term loan to an associate T — S
NAIZEHER 10(b) -
Prepayments and other receivables TEA FIE K
H e Yo 5108 13 1,827
Current income tax recoverable BV EA AT Y 0 AT 45 350 9
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITER 14(a) 2,005
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 14(a) 1,560
Total current assets RBEEHE 62,189
Total assets EEHAE 234,146
EQUITY -
Equity attributable to owners of RREEB AFEAS
the Company W= 15 15,228
Share capital [N
Reserves ®E
— Proposed final dividend —EEARERE 16, 26 2,205
— Others —HAh 16 210,764
Total equity R 228,197
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EEtER K&
H 1 5R0E 17 1,596
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 4,030
Amount due to a related party JE —REEAT
B 34(d) 323
Total current liabilities BB EEEE 5,949
Total equity and liabilities ERREERAE 234,146
Net current assets REBEERE 56,240
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDAR 228,197

The financial statements on pages 55 to 137 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014 and were signed
on its behalf.

HNESRI7TE M BMEACR - NF A+ HBEEEFeEHRTHTIALRRES -

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
1 gk
Director Director

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these financial statements.
BNE62E137EMNM LTI R A MR — &b -

Annual Report 2013 £ 57



Consolidated Income Statement

mEllER

VYear ended 31 December 2013 HEZZT—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue Wz 20 372,922
Cost of sales 45 AR 22 (311,422)
Gross profit EF 61,500
Other gains — net Hih s — 55 21 616
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIELE
held for sale EMB)E BE 2 Wz 7(i), 31 -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXZ 22 (23,967)
Administrative expenses TR 22 (28,387)
Operating profit &R A 9,762
Finance income B Bl A 1,457
Finance costs B 2 (1,211)
Finance income — net B E A —F R 23 246
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FEAL —FEI B & A A
BBz B 48 10(a) (44)
Profit before income tax FR BT 15 Bi AT R 9,964
Income tax expense FiEHimAx 24 (3,413)
Profit for the year AEFEEEF 25 6,551
Profit attributable to: LT &FEMEF :
Owners of the Company RAEHEB A 7,342
Non-controlling interest FEIE R (791)
6,551
Earnings per share for profit ARARER AE
attributable to the owners of FRBEFNZ2EBREF
the Company during the year (AR EMFITR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BREXER 27 0.48
Diluted earnings per share BRE#®FER 27 0.48

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZZT—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Item that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:

— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income
for the year

2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——fF
Us$'000 US$'000
FET
REEBF 6,551
Htt 2wk A
AIEHHEEEEZEE
ME N ZER 168
AEERBEEIM2EEA
168
AEEXEKRALE
6,719
UTEFEEEEE
2HKAEEE:
B NEIEZ=WN 7,512
—JEPERR R (793)
AEEEXEKAHALE
6,719

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2013

BE-T-=FT-A=t-ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR
Non-
Share Share Exchange Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
R& RGEE ERfE AHRE REEF @i FERER BRAR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn TEn Txn Txn Txin Txn Tin TEn
Balance at 1 January 2012 RIE-Z5-A-BzEH 15,228 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 271,838 (217) 271,621
Comprehensive income 2EHBA
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (FB) - - - - 7,342 7,342 (791) 6,551
Other comprehensive income Hit2EUWA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 170 - - 170 ¥ 168
Total comprehensive income 2EUALE - - 170 - 7342 7512 (793) 6,719
Total transactions with owners BEBAZARSR
Dividends paid relating to ZR—fRZF-CF
2011 and 2012 interim period THEEERNRE - - - - (6,940) (6,940) - (6,940)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZB-ZF+=f=+-A2
] 15,228 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 272,410 (1,010) 271,400
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=5-A-Az&8# 15,228 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 272,410 (1,010 271,400
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit/(loss) for the year R/ (B8) - - - - 1,488 1,488 (760) 728
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences EXZE - - 1,748 - - 1,748 2 1,770
Total comprehensive income 2EARALE - - 1,748 - 1,488 3,236 (738) 2,498
Total transactions with owners AREAZARSE
Dividends paid relating to ZE-ERZE-=F
2012 and 2013 interim period FHEBZERRE - - - - (3,741) (3,741) - (3,741)
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZB8-ZE+ZA=1-HZ
&8 15,228 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2012
—F—=
Note US$'000
B 5% FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZ
HERE
Cash (used in)/generated from 2% (A
operations EXZR% 31 34,663
Interest received B U B 1,457
Interest paid ENEME (1,114)
Income taxes paid [RENIEEY (6,083)
Net cash (used in)/generated from R (TR
operating activities BEEZREFH 28,923
Cash flows from investing activities REFEZHERE
Purchases of property, BEYE BE M
plant and equipment B R 7 (9,236)
Decrease in long-term prepayment of ME  BERSEZ
property, plant and equipment RHITE A
B 27
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME BE R
plant and equipment JH 2 FT1SRE 31 769
Proceeds from sale of non-current HERIEFLE 2
assets held for sale FREEELZ
1S X8 31 -
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE 8 (56)
Purchases of land use rights B LifE AE 6 (51)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term 72 B8R 1717 3%
bank deposits A () (7,387)
Increase in restricted cash 5 BRI 38 5 48 0 -
Increase in short-term loan to an associate A —RIB & QA2
_FEEE AN -
Increase in investment in an associate R—EEERRZ
AN 10 (2,078)
Net cash used in investing activities BEEBAZ
ReFE (18,012)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHZ2RERE
Dividends paid EARNESS 26 (6,940)
Proceeds from current bank borrowings BNERRITEE
e e 60,177
Repayment of current bank borrowings EEBERITIEE (59,717)
Proceeds from non-current JERNERRITIE B
bank borrowings PIISARIE -
Repayment of non-current EEIFNRITEE
bank borrowings i (5,314)
Repayment of amount due to BEERKIE
Vedan Enterprise Corporation A1 B PR A 7]
("Taiwan Vedan") (e~
Q=] (2,166)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RMETBELE
financing activities (PR ZREFHE (13,960)
Net decrease in cash and REeRELEEY
cash equivalents WD FRE (3,049)
Cash and cash equivalents RETN 2B e R
at beginning of year AaEEY 14(a) 45,518
Exchange gains on cash and ReRHCEEY
cash equivalents pd SR & 98
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at end of year ReEEY 14(a) 42,567

The notes on pages 62 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis of principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

62  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (258) AR A F

—RRH

WABEER (ZER)ERAF ([RAF]) R
HEHfBAR (AEIAEEDEERBE
EEEBRINNE  ELERRARNER
WIXER (BFREMRD BERE K
15 ERAT B ) AR BREL - Em T HEE
MR HMREKBEZR PEARKM
B([hE]) BX aEkZEREER
WREDHE BEREZARR URRM-
o BRI IEREER-

RARARAEREFMRLZERA
A Mt BE MU A - Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies °

ARARNBEMARZMABMRAGE L

BRATIASN BEMERRIAET ([
TTDIE ERBHRER T —0OF=
A-+hREEESHERM-

RREERFESHBREBE

BREEGEEMBEHRERRAZELERTE
S BREINMT R AR I FE
BREERERARMEZHRFE -

21 REE%E
REENREUBREDIRESTE
g EERMRE - 428 B HE
TH iR 1R E 52 R AN A 51 T 4 &Y o

MR & BB I H WS A& B 75
BERFEERETE2M A
MEREERBARE ZSHER
BEPIFERELHE - P RREE
FEMESE = R A B 2 # RS S AR
AUBHRRBER 2 BRI 1T
R R4 T AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 BREERTESHRFEE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE (F)
(@) The following new standards, interpretations and (@) ARBHERFIA T —=F—

H—AMMmzMWBRFEERE
RTPETER 2R ER
B5T X EYERSMHRE
CRHEEETMERTE-

amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013, but have not had
any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial B Eal Evillg s e
(Amendment) Statements E15 (B3I K)
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits Bt gt Ea EERA
(Amendment) F195% (EFTA)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial ERETENE27R BUNBERE
Statements (®E3T)
HKAS 28 (Revised) Associates and Joint Ventures ERETENSE8E BELAR
(®E3T) BEAT
HKFRS 1 First Time Adoption on EEMBRELD  EREABHER
(Amendment) Government Loans Z1% (BEIR)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: ERMBREED SBIA KE-
(Amendment) Disclosure — Offsetting E7% (BFIX) HEHMBEER
Financial Assets and BKaE
Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial ERMBRELD RAMBRER
Statements £105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements EEMBREE  HARTH
15
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in ERRBRELDN BREREMEEZ
Other Entities £12% 3
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements ERBBRELN ATEHE
F13%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the B (BRMBRE BRBSEEER
Production Phase of REZE®) ZHBREA
a Surface Mine —REF20%
Amendments to Consolidated Financial BRUBRER  GANERX
HKFRSs 10, 11 Statements, Joint E10% AANE  ARRHLREER
and 12 Arrangements and BREENFNRE REMERZ

Disclosure of Interests in EENBREEN  Ex:BEES
Other Entities: Transition FNR2EFT

Guidance
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE(HE)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE (EF)

(b) The following interpretation and amendments to by UATAEBEMELIER_-F

standards have been issued, but are not effective —=F—A— BB ZHHE
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2013 and EAEXN - HIMEERRA 22
have not been early adopted. B R ZEET -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTHBEHHzE
R zatHEEEN
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined benefit plans 1 July 2014
BB G ERE195 E a8 AT &l —E-MNE+LA—H
CCHEN)
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation on 1 January 2014
asset and liability offsetting
BB G R E325% TRIA  KHEEEREBZES —ZT-WFE—-—HA—H
CEHEN)
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets on recoverable 1 January 2014
amount disclosures
BB G LR FE365R AE A C 5 R E R —E-MNE—-—A—H
(EFT )
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 January 2014
Measurement — Novation of derivatives
BB G ERE395% CHITAE BMRANGE-TEITAZEE —ZT-—HF—-H—H
CCHEN)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
BBV EERIEIR SR TA —T-—hF—H—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Consolidation for Investment Entities 1 January 2014
10, 12 and HKAS 27
BB EENFE105% mAtAREER —T-mFE—-—A—H
EBMBHREEAF129% X
ARG ERE279 &R
HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies 1 January 2014
HE (BERMBRE e —E-NME—-A—H
REZEF)E215%
Annual improvements Improvements to HKASs and 1 July 2014
project HKFRSs 2010 — 2013
FREUGET S —E-EFF T —E-ME+A—H
BB EAR
BB B E LR 2 Bl
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the REFED FBTMERA D AER 2
impact of adopting the above amendments to standards BRI RBRBZZE - RNEE R RAEE
and interpretation. The Group is not yet in a position THERSAEE 2SR LY
to state whether substantial changes to the Group's BHREZZHNHFALERERNES -
accounting policies and financial statements presentation
will result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 HMEAFR
2.2.1 Consolidation 22.148&
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured MEARREREEEHHEEFAR
entity) over which the Group has control. The THIENER (BEEBETLE
Group controls an entity when the Group is B) - MAEBEAENXESR
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from ST 2 7] B0 A b
its involvement with the entity and has the ability N URAIEREHZELY
to affect those returns through its power over the FEN AR B BRI R - A%
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date ERTFAEGE-WBARE
on which control is transferred to the Group. They HEtEER TASEZ AR
are deconsolidated from the date that control Fa AR WREGIEELLEE
ceases. AiFL4RA ABR-
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised EEARAERS HEHkE
gains on transactions between group companies are NRRIER S 2 REBRWER
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. HATPHE RERBETSYH
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries H-MBERE WBAGZEW
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's ZEBEHELAR  LERE
accounting policies ErestBE—%
(a)  Business combinations (a) EBAEO
The Group applies the acquisition method REBRAWEETE
to account for business combinations. The E¥Bat-WENREA
consideration transferred for the acquisition AMNEERERMEE
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of BE -WWERAES
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred EMEEAERASEHE
to the former owners of the acquiree and FrEEfTiR AR AT
the equity interests issued by the Group. The BRBE - FTEERER
consideration transferred includes the fair RIAARBLHEED
value of any asset or liability resulting from FREESXBEHRAF
a contingent consideration arrangement. B-REBE MK
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 85 1) 1] 54 Bl B B IR BT
contingent liabilities assumed in a business ENBGBELRIAERE"
combination are measured initially at their I F LW B oA A
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group FFE - AREBEIZZEIER
recognises any non-controlling interest in RN FEYIE
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition [i% #8 25 2 Eb 1) B 1 3 R
basis, either at fair value or at the non- BAAUHRNEEFEDN
controlling interest’s proportionate share RS AR U
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s TR R s

identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement (Note 2.7).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(o]

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), joint
venture or financial asset (Note 2.10). In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2

RHREERTFERRFEE (])

22 KMEBRAE (&)
22146 (#)

(b)

(o]

WEGHIESIEEH 2
MEBLRHEA AERE
)

B 3R AR 2R HE 1T 1T
SEYREENEZR
HAEIEERR S
BB AANEBAS D
BTZRG - EREMN
REZATFEERNE
RREEFERTEMR
MEZHENEZER
R AR - [ ZFE IR
EabEZB2BTIIRN
YN

HEHBRR

WAEETHEBIL
EOERZERB AWM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 MIEAR (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors collectively.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) —
net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial

assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

72 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (258) MR A F

2

RHEERTFERHFEE (K])

2.6

ME- - BERRE
ME - BB R&RE (EZITERKRIN)
IR IR L AR R AT B R REHR
EERIIR ELRABRRBEEZAR
WHEIEE MR -

REEEBABZIARREBENEA
BEERALREE BtrFEistER
BZRAE  BERERZKABE
ABEZRAESER R —HEL
BE(WER) wmEZEHREE
BIEONEmSRBUETER - A
HipE RREER ARELZY
BHEA - MR RS RA -

ME - BEMRREBHTELNRER
EREEMGE A ERF AR A
HEEBEDNT:

- W 20-504F
—  BEKKE 10-204F
- A”RE 5-84F
- WRAERE 5-84F

BEZHKERAERFHANER
EHMRTUEMLAR (ER)

1l B E AR T (B 8 i 5T 49 R IR (B SR RR
AR - BIE 2 AR EHE 5 32 2 BB
EHAWEIREE (F3E2.8) -

& 2 BB 15 B % A 1S O AR
EEELRMERE  XH AL K
RAER R [Eftbs (BE) —
EER

ERIREBERTHRETREEN
BRI - URASR RFHREEBA
R-EETEMMERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

Separately acquired trademarks, the brand name
and the licence, which have finite useful lives,
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost
of trademarks, brand name and licence over their
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRREE (E)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBREE

(a)  Goodwill (a) BE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, BERKERB AR BEA
associates and joint ventures and represents AREEREREEL WED
the excess of the consideration transferred over EERERE AR BRI E
the Group's interest in net fair value of the net FAHBEEFE BERK
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent RBERTEEm RRHER
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the BHZFERER A TEZH
non-controlling interest in the acquiree. o
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken PMETFETRERS T
annually or more frequently if events or changes REEFHLBRERNEET
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Aee AR ER - B EER
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the el o M ERMEEREA YL
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value HAEE AREREBEREQT
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any BERBEEXNR ZREE - F[
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense BERN SR AR - BHE
and is not subsequently reversed. TegfmE-
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETREANR  REBE O
acquired in a business combination is allocated to REC B DRERER
each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"), or BRE BRSNS BRER
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from B ([ S EMN]) K
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or — BB EN - SESR
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated FBEzEUR—EENRER
represents the lowest level within the entity at HANERERFE HEE
which the goodwill is monitored for internal o BB E D AR B E AT
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at AR o
the operating segment level.
(b)  Trademarks, brand name and licence (b) BE mMEEEHRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 B EE
2.10.1 748

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts that
are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash equivalents
(Note 2.13), amount due from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, loan to a subsidiary and
amounts due from subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 M EE (#)
2103 i@ T A

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 BM%EE (§)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Spare parts and consumables are included within
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted
average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

2

REEERTES

2.16

2.17

R E ()

BE
BENFERAFENBRRZERAEK
HER - EERRRB K ARTIR T
BROR (MBRZHRA) BEE(EE
BzERNEZBRARNEERANERE
/T\%lj\_,/ﬁﬁ/\l\/—f\ L& ﬁmﬁ&wu

BRIEARN SR B A R R AR R R 3RS A

BREBREZETMEED =
BA TREERSBARDEE
88 RO B 18 B

HRNHIBERZ BIEE B RIEERIE -
BRREMEEEAKEERERSA
ﬁ N BB R E R NERE

CIVED RIRE M 2R A S EE
F% & A RERR o

(a) EHPEH

EHMERAX IREBEAR
(31NN RN W%&F
EERRARBAZBERNEER
B R B E R 2 B AN
HE-EEEEAREAD
REMRRZ 150 E BT E R
MERZMN WHEERIFRT
RIBEHARRBEEAS T 2
T4 TR AR E e o

Annual Report 2013 £3§ /9



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax

(b)

0]

(if)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

217 EMRIBEEREHR (F)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(c)

# 35
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2.18 EERTH

(a)  Pension obligations (a) RUKZEMT
The Group participates in a number of defined AEEL2EZEATEEKRS T
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally I EEE—RBEBEVERER
held in independently administered funds. The A o AEE M E R ARG
Group's contributions to the defined contribution EHEHHMREREH-
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(b)  Termination benefits (b) AR

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2.19

practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

82  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (258) AR A F

2.19

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

220 BRKWERE MUK A

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b)  Sales of surplus electricity
Sales of surplus electricity are recognised based on
units of electricity sold as recorded by meters during
the year.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(d)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations,
which the directors consider the exposures
to be insignificant. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2013, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
Us$610,000 (2012: US$1,217,000) lower/
higher (2012: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group does
not have a cash flow interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors cash flow interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant cash flow
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$216,000 (2012: US$92,000) lower/higher
(2012: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from the
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputations. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 14 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 14) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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e M BHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERIEER ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HM¥ERBREX(E)

THRBEEFHZAOIEEH
THEEAKERARRZHBEE
B RBBRHMARETHI - NKR
RPRBZEERANANARS

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2 =S
//Ithi°

Group rE
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR —FEWE WEERLF BBRF At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T FTET FTET TEn T
At 31 December 2013 R -ZT—=%F
+ZA=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note)  $R{THE & (HisE) 44,045 1,266 54 887 46,252
Trade payables BREZER 14,590 - - - 14,590
Other payables HoAh e (4 5B 9,189 - - - 9,189
Amount due to a ER—2EBEATHE
related party 313 - - - 313
At 31 December 2012  HZZT—=F
+ZA=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note)  $R7TfE & (HisE) 24,157 268 10,489 - 34,914
Trade payables ERNESHEX 23,113 - - - 23,113
Other payables H i fE 508 15,061 - - - 15,061
Amount due to a ER—2EBEALTHIER
related party 323 - - - 323
Company AT
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—-Fr -—-FEZMFE WEEIE BBEE &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTER TER TEn TEr FEr
At 31 December 2013 HZT—=F
+-A=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) $R{TEE (HizE) 2,571 - - - 2,571
Other payables H i e 5B 1,073 - - - 1,073
Amount due to a BN —2EBEALTHE
related party 313 - - - 313
At 31 December 2012 HZT—ZF
+ZA=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) SRfTfEE (Fff#E) 4,127 - - - 4,127
Other payables Hn e 5RIE 1,002 - - - 1,002
Amount due to a EN—ZEBEALTE
related party 323 - - - 323
Note: B 5
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings up to FHRERBIESES I HARRITEE
their respective maturities. JEAS 2 F B e
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e M HRRM

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2

MERBRER (&)
EXEBER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
equity holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings.

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as
follows:

Total bank borrowings (Note 18) BIRITIEE (H5E18)
Owners’ equity (including mEAZER
non-controlling interest in equity) (BEIAERZ
PR L)
Total capital B
Gearing ratio BEABHE

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable.
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FRZZ—Z-F+=ZA=+—H
BEABLENT:
Group
&3 3
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
33,219
271,400
304,619
1%

ERERARBEEAGBLXES
He
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and non-
indefinite life intangible assets (Note 8) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements
and estimates.
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4q CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4q EESHARAE (88)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) V¥ BEREZENEREFHER
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets EENMGERE (&)
(continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations AU EEREEZ FEMENT -
are as follows.
Vietnam The PRC
FE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT—- —E-—=F —T——fF
Selling price growth rate EEERE 5% - 10% 30% 2% 0% -17.4%
Discount rate IR = 10% 11.5% 12% 12.5%
Long term growth rate REERE nil nil 3.5% 1%
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of AT ED BRSNS B
each CGU within the operating segment. EERABERRE-
(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and () V¥ BERRENEFEENER
intangible assets FH
The Group’s management determines the estimated REBENERE2EAREARMRE
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation PR 5% 55 & B BUS R PR A Bl 2= B il
charges for its property, plant and equipment and FTEE BEEYE  RE REEM
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods mIVEEMMGF A ERFHREHE
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits e B SH 2 o B RAMR ET D BARR L
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based B RINEER Y - BB M R AN
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of FEENERFERFHNELLER
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of REE E TR AFHEBAE GG
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust B EEERARTERBHEAS -
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful ERGEFHA R ERAE
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives HAEM R - EHAEH AT BB Al
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review REREAZBARANTE REHA
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore IR EE -
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.
(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes (d EPFRESHRELRSEH

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

AEERGHTE  BERkaENm
B - RNEERRMEHN AR EDN
SR ARBAFLEARHE -
ZRGREFAEHHNBHEETERK
RIS ER - AEEAGFRKES
BUANERSMEIR - 1L T e R Y TR AR 75
EREEZEF -WEZEFEEZHR
B REBYAR € ETE - %
EERBTEVNBEECHANZED
RBEREMEHREEREE-
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a4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(e) Functional currency
The functional currency of each of the Group's entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgment.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's policies and information for the purposes of assessing
performance. The Group presents its operating segment results
(below), based on the information reviewed by the chief
operating decision-makers, which the chief operating decision-
makers used to make strategic decisions. This information
includes segment revenue, segment assets and capital
expenditures.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

The chief operating decision maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$60,034,000 (2012:
US$59,092,000) is derived from a single external customer. This
revenue is attributable to the Japan segment.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEE(E)
(a) Segment revenue (a) DEUz=E

2013 2012

—E-—=fF —FT——F

Us$’000 Us$'000

FET FET

Vietnam i) 173,347

The PRC H 40,282

Japan =] 79,955

Taiwan =] 11,862
ASEAN member countries RHKE

(other than Vietnam) (e 3EBE) 50,512

Other regions H b b [& 16,964

Group: AEH: 372,922

(b) Capital expenditures (b) EAERZH

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam o] 6,783

The PRC =] 2,560

9,343

Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on

where the assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets.

o

BAXHEDRBEEMELT DA
EX-32)

7|
A

=S

EAXHBREAEME BE MR
B LtHEREREREE-

() Total assets (c) #HMEE
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E—_4F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET
Vietnam A= 287,876
The PRC H 57,082
Hong Kong aBE 8,308
Taiwan Eh- 401
Singapore o 62
Group: RERE: 353,729
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

(c) Total assets (continued)

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where

the assets are located.

Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation and
impairment of non-current assets (Note 6, 7 and 8) for

each operating segment.

SEWRE ()

(0 @EE(H)
BEETDEEEERENTHES
55

AN

mE - -BEMREHEEBNEED
HEMER-UTRELEENHN
FERBEEEE T ERRE (M
6 7M8)BE-
Amortisation
and
depreciation Impairment
BERITE BB
Us$'000 Us$'000
FTER FER

2013 —E-=fF

Vietnam figa)

The PRC i

2012 —E——F

Vietnam i 21,815 666

The PRC = 2,974 _
24,789 666
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REMBRERME

6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 TihERE-XEE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBR L FERAE ERIELERN 2
operating lease payments and their net book values are FBRRIE HEREFEITOT:

analysed as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=5F —ET-—F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET

Outside Hong Kong, held on Leases of EBBANINGB
between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZ2ELY 2,205
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
At 1 January n—A—H 2,200
Additions NE 51
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 A A 4
(Notes 5 and 22) (Pt#E5K22) (51)
Exchange differences N ZER 5
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H” 2,205
In respect of the Group's land use rights, Mao Tai Foods MAEE THFEREmS  RPBIKZ
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shandong Vedan Fa B AR EERA(EM AR
Snowflake and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai A (TEFXE]) IWRKRASIER B8
Vedan”), subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, RNCEARAFR([EERAEES
have been granted rights to use the land by the relevant BERETABATFN T HMERAE 5
authority for 50 years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 FRZEN—F  —ERANFR-ZZEAE
respectively. I8 o
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 7 ME - BERSRG -—F5HE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
EEIR nE  BERES RE BAERE &t
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000
FEn FEn FEn TER TER TEx
At 1 January 2012 R=B--%-A-H
Cost 2% 5,122 104,144 405,331 8,687 31,378 554,662
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (53,976) (295,807) (7,086) (28,349) (385,218)
Accumulated impairment ZEAE - (2,728) (9,147) - (22) (11,897)
Net book amount FEEE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z-—F
TZA=t-RLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
Additions RE 7,391 140 642 708 355 9,236
Transfer iz (5,571) 1,495 4,058 - 18 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (FaE31) - (369) (297) (33) () (701)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 22) WE (MF5K%22) - (5,121) (16,827) (414) (917) (23,279)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERELEIRDEE
held for sale (Note i) (Waxi) - (650) (1,246) - (4) (1,900)
Impairment loss (Notes 4, 5 and 22) BEEB (M 5Kk22) - (260) (59) () 1) (322)
Exchange differences ERES 4 14 26 - 1 45
Closing net book amount FREEFE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
At 31 December 2012 R=Z2--%+=-A=1+-H
Cost 2% 6,946 104,169 405,672 8,601 31,633 557,021
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (58,852) (309,851) (6,741) (29,154) (404,598)
Accumulated impairment ZitlfE - (2:628) (9,147) - (22) (11,797)
Net book amount HEHEE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Year ended 31 December 2013 BZ-Z-=F
TZA=t-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Additions NE 6,511 264 250 736 87 7,848
Transfer [ (9,915) 5,286 4,420 - 209 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (FaE31) - (55) (197) (19) 8) (279)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 22) & (MFE5R22) - (5,102) (15,744) (432) (867) (22,145)
Exchange differences EREHE 100 19 350 5 7 658
Closing net book amount FREBFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=Zf+t=ZA=t+-H
Cost AR 3,642 109,771 407,356 8,851 31,359 560,979
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (63,865) (322,456) (6,701) (29,452) (422,474)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (2,628) (9,147) - (22) (11,797)
Net book amount BHZE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP
(continued)

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group are
pledged as security for the Group’s current and non-current
bank borrowings as follows:

¥k BERRM-XKHE (&)

AEBETYE BENMRHBE TEM
ERASBEM A RIFANMRITIERE 2K
o HHNWT:

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FETx FET
Net book amount of pledged property, EEAYE BELRZE
plant and equipment (Note 35) BREF(E (MIFE35) 15,058 19,157

Depreciation expense of US$18,429,000 (2012:
US$16,392,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$380,000
(2012: US$349,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$3,336,000 (2012: US$6,538,000) in administrative
expenses.

Note:

U]

On 19 November 2012, Veyu Enterprise Co. Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation
Limited (“Vietnam Vedan"”), entered into an agreement with
an independent third party, to dispose of its property, plant
and equipment of US$1,900,000 located in Gia Lai Province in
Vietnam for VND 60,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$2,886,000).
The relevant property, plant and equipment were presented as
non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December 2012. This
transaction was completed in April 2013 and a gain of disposal
of US$986,000 has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2013.

rE H 118,429,000k T (- T — — 4
16,392,000% 7t ) * 380,000% 0 (=&
— Z 4% :349,0003 7t ) }3,336,0003 T

— T ——4:6,538,000%7T) &9 B
ERA HERDHERIUARITERASF
Bk e

GEX

(i) RZE—ZF+—A+NB KT (B
EOBRMABRAR (THE®RS)22E
I B 2 A]Veyu Enterprise Co. LtdfE—
BB HE I UEEMNREREE
HAEE1,900,000 T2 WE BE &
4% {8 560,000,000,0008 & (8%
72,886,000%C) - R =T —=F+=A
=+—RB HEmE BERERED 27
RBELEERDEE - FAXSE N
T-=FWARK YERBE-Z—=
F+_A=+—HALEFEREAREERNAN
#32986,0003 7T 2 i & Y & ©
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY 8 EVEE-FEERELT
Group Company
N3 LN
Software Veyu
Goodwill  and licence  brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE HHERER KR g e it [l
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTEn FEn FErn Txn TEn FTET
At 1 January 2012 R-B--%-A-H
Cost A 8,938 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,811 12,089
Accumulated amortisation 2t EE (158) (755) (684) (8,261) (9,858) (8,261)
Net book amount REFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z-—-F
tZA=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
Additions RE - 56 - - 56 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 22)  #sBBIs (HIEE5822) - (136) (114) (1,209) (1,459) (1,209)
Impairment loss (Notes 5 and 22) REEE (ME5K%22) - - (344) - (344) -
Exchange differences ERESE 20 - - - 20 -
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
At 31 December 2012 RZZE-Z#+ZA=t+-H
Cost AR 8,958 1,698 1,142 12,089 23,887 12,089
Accumulated amortisation R (158) (891) (798) (9,470) (11,317) (9,470)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - - (344) - (344) -
Net book amount FEEE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z2-=fF
TZAZ+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Additions NE - 25 - - 25 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 22) B #F% (Hi#5K22) - (130) - (1,209) (1,339) (1,209)
Exchange differences ERESE 251 - - - 251 -
Closing net book amount FREMFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
At 31 December 2013 RZB-Z#+tZA=t+-H
Cost KA 9,209 1,723 - 12,089 23,021 12,089
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3 (158) (1,021) - (10,679) (11,858) (10,679)
Net book amount REFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B P AITBAX -
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

8 EEBE-FRERFLFE (&)

2R E A

EETIREA S E L E D &0 i EREUGR

operating segment. S BN
The PRC Vietnam
i .7
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
RAEEHE RERE &5t
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TXET TETT FET
At 31 December 2013 RZTB—=F+=-"RA=+—8H 8,321 730 9,051
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_HA=+—H 8,070 730 8,800

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging segment in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as
follows.

The PRC
o

Gross margin FE A=
Long term growth rate EHE X
Discount rate PR R

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

14.4% - 22.4%

REReBEM zAIRE SR IREREER
E-REFHEENEEEHEZAFY
BIBEERRMATR S RETRNET B
HAFHZRASREEBIAT 2 ZMAF
BEREE (IER) - BETERRERE
ReBUMEECRBREDHHORMF
BgRE.

RAFTEEREEZTERENT -

Vietnam
A=
2013
=2 =F
11.7% - 14.3%
nil
10%

1%
12.5%

ZEBRANDMEED BARAZRIRE

EEENREBEREREHTIHER
ZEMEEREENK -FAFRXTIHR
AIHTIR 3 - I = BR AR BE A8 & 0 /0 2 15 TE AL

LA
a0
PA

o
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY 8

(continued)

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the recoverable amounts to

below the carrying amounts.

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

BRBE-FRERFTLF (W)

EEEMRRE BENAKREEREMMKED
TERRNEIMAIER
Al e EERERE-.

HTEEHHE

PHEBARZRE KFTHRELAFTZ

BEREELRHREBATRRF LT

(a) RHIBLARAZKRE

2013 2012

—E-=F —ET—-—F

Us$’000 Us$'000

SFESTm FET

Unlisted shares e ET G, 166,030 166,030

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

THAR-_TE—=6+-"A=+—

December 2013: HzFEWBRA:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of %
establishment and issued/paid up interest
kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name MBI/ HRUItE  place of operation BRIT/HR FEER
A% UREEERER TEXRREERH RAFE %
Directly held:
BERE
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
("BVI") EEBREER of US$1 each
RERAES 100 BREE
[Eok:3k0s
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
REREUES EEBREBER of US$1 each
1008 & R EE
(B350
Indirectly held:
R
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore ~ US$61,109,000 100%
I TEsm k% & 1 Ordinary shares
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

(a)

PHEBEARZRBE BFTHRELTZ

HRREHRREBATRR LT

(%)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) RHBERARAZRE (H&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of %
establishment and issued/paid up interest
kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name MR/ Bt place of operation BRT/HR BEER
A% UK EBEER IEFBREELE RAFE %
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore ~ US$20,177,000 100%
DI TEs % A1 Ordinary shares
20,177,000
ETERR
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of 131,970,000 100%
Corporation Limited i fermentation-based food Ordinary shares of
A (BE)RHERRE additives and biochemical US$1 each
products and cassava starch- 131,970,000
based industrial products SREMEIET
including MSG, GA, modified IRl
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
EMEREREEEHR MMM
Bl EtERRAZRHIEE
e BERE AR
EURY BERE M
RERTHEL D
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sales of MSG in 1,838,282 100%
[ Vietnam Ordinary shares of
EHBBERHEERS US$1 each
1,838,2821%
BREEIET
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of MSG in ~ US$17,200,000 70%

Enterprise Co., Ltd.
WEENASEEEER AR

liability company

hE BEREARAF

the PRC
EFELERKBERS

Registered capital
17,200,000 T
AMER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9 RHEAFRZRE BTFHELATZ
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM HERRERMEARTRE-FAF
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) (%8)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) RKMBAAZEKRE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of %
establishment and issued/paid up interest
kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name HMEI,/ MutE  place of operation BRT/HE BEER
% UREEERER TEERREERY RAFE %
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise PRC, limited Packaging and sale of MSG in US$9,800,000 100%
Co. Ltd. liability company the PRC Registered capital
FERACERRAR RECBEREMAT  ATPEBERBEERE 9,800,000 7T
B AR
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC, limited Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Export Trade Co., Ltd. liability company industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EMATELNESERAT +HE -EREALR CHEEEAZRMNIZED 254,000 7T
aftEx
(b) Loans to subsidiaries and amounts due from (b) #HFTHEBARAZERREWKEA
subsidiaries G/

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2013, the non-current loan to a
subsidiary of US$2,218,000 is unsecured, carried an
interest at three-month SIBOR plus 1% per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 July
2016. (2012: nil).

As at 31 December 2013, the current loan to a
subsidiary of US$54,000 is unsecured, carried an
interest at three-month SIBOR plus 3.25% per
annum, denominated in US$ and repayable on 31
December 2014. (2012: US$8,453,000, unsecured,
interest at three-month SIBOR plus 1.5% to 3.25%
per annum, denominated in US$ and repayable
before 31 December 2013.)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable on
demand.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RZE—=%+=_A=+—
A %7 —HHWEBARZ
2,218,000E L 3ERNEAE K B
A = AT IR
TRIERBENEZ FF R
B UELTHE WERZ-ZE
—RNFLtA=Zt+—HEEZE (=
T—ZF M) o

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—
H- %7 —HHWBRAAZ
54,000 LRI B E X A K
W =AM IERITRE
FEM325E 2 FFEGFE
NETAHE BBER TN
F+-—A=+—HEER(=ZZ
— — % :8,453,000% 7T A%
AR =@ A RITHE
ERENMN T1.5BE3.25=
CEMERFBAETEHHE I
HER—_ZE—=ZF+_A=+—
HAIEE) -

JE U B 8 X B R0R A R AR
RECUERTFE WEARRE
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10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE AND SHORT-
TERM LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND
COMPANY

(a)

Investment in an associate

10 R—HABRZELATZRERE T MK
ELAFIZEMER-—FREARFLF

(a) R—EHELATZRE

Company
ARAFE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FXR TXET

Unlisted shares, at cost E LMD (RACAR) - 3,308

Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows:

—EEERR 2 REZEBHIT
Group Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012

—®-=f -—T--F -—B-=fF -—T--f
US$'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000

At 1 January wn—HA—H
Injection of share NN

capital
Share of post-tax FE(R— B E QA

loss of an associate R Fi 1% B 1R

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H

Nature of investment in associate as at 31 December
2013 and 2012:

FXn

TETT TERx TXETT

1,230

2,078

3,308

RZE—=Fk=_F—=-F+=-A
—t+—HB RA-HEBERARZREMN

BT
Country of Particulars of %
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held
=E: B RVA=TES BRITRAFE BEER%
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30
Holdings Limited FEeRS US$1 each
EMBEFRZERERA 4,100,0000%
BREMBE1ETZERG

The associate is principally engaged in real estate
development in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2013, the
associate has not started any development project.

SEEL TR R
B-ME-T-=F+-A=t—
ifﬁ.—é

EI X N A A R R IR (] B R IR
B o
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e ISR R

10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE AND SHORT- 10 R—MEBEATNZEAEARGE T —MH
BERARIZEMER-—FREARFLT

TERM LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND

COMPANY (continued)

(a) Investment in an associate (continued)
Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000
(2012: US$3,112,000) in relation to the Group's

investment in the associate.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

(%)

(a)

Opening net assets as R—B—B2
at 1 January MY EEFHE
Loss for the period HmEE
Injection of share capital EN &N
Closing net assets HREEFE
Interest in an associate (30%) R—EBE R R 2w
(30%)

(b) Short-term loan to an associate
As at 31 December 2013, the short-term loan to an
associate of US$96,000 is unsecured, carried an interest
of 3.5% per annum, denominated in US$ and repayable
on 16 September 2014 (2012: Nil).
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(b)

R—EBHEATN 2RE (F)
EMERZERERABDRMARE
BE R4 3 8 35 R (B o

REBRZBHELE AR 2REAR
2,632,000 L (=% —Z%F:
3,112,000% 70 ) 2 B ARFALE -

BEERNSEHER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
uUs$‘000 Us$'000
FTET FET
3,359
(147)
6,927
10,139
3,042

BFI-BBEQATRZEHER
RZE—=F+ZA=+—80"'%
¥ — M5 & A 7] 296,0003 7T A2 Hi
ERBEEI R F F E3.5%F 5T
B UETFHE TAEARZ-ZZT—N
FNA+AHEERE(ZZE——_F:
) o
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11

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 RENESZEMIRA-FRERF

GROUP AND COMPANY

N

Group TEE
Loans and receivables BER R EWHIE
— Long-term loan and receivables -~ REEFR R EWKIE
— Trade receivables —ERE SRR
— Amount due from non-controlling — R — KB A A
interest of a subsidiary AR RE R 2 B
— Short-term loan to an associate — BT —EBERRZ
REER
— Other receivables — current portion — H i JE W FRIA
—BVHE3E015
— Other receivables — H b FEUR IR
— non-current portion —FERNHA SR
— Short-term bank deposits —RHRITER
— Restricted cash —ZRHIRE
- Cash and cash equivalents - BekREEED
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHKAHECVBERE
— Trade payables —ERNEFHER
— Other payables — H th JE T B
— Amount due to a related party - —%E@EE
AL Z A
— Bank borrowings —RITEE

2013
—2-=F

US$'000
FTXR

2012
B
Us$'000
FET

134
41,703

1,405

4,959

134
7,387

42,567

98,289

23,113
15,061

323
33,219

71,716
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mEMBHRRME
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 REJNESZEMTIA-FTEERF
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) AT ()
2013 2012
—E2—=£ —E——F
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Company ARATE
Loans and receivables B3 el skE
— Amounts due from subsidiaries —EKKHBARZ
A 48,335
- Loans to subsidiaries —BTHBRARZER 8,453
— Short-term loan to an associate B —RHBERAZ
HHER -
— Other receivables — H {th fE W E 16
— Short-term bank deposits — R EERITIE R 2,005
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekREFEY 1,560
60,369
2013 2012
—EBE—=5F —E-—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHNAHEZHBAE
— Other payables — H th JE T B 1,002
— Amount due to a related party —EN—2EEE
Atz FIA 323
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 4,030
5,355
12 INVENTORIES - GROUP 12 HFE-F5£H
2013 2012
2= —E——4F
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FZET
Spare parts and consumables THRIBEM 3,742
Raw materials R AR 45,192
Work in progress ERR 10,953
Finished goods RUAK Th 31,209
91,096
The cost of inventories of US$255,791,000 (2012: FE A 5255,791,000 T (ZF——
US$271,912,000) has been charged in cost of sales. £ :271,912,000% ) BT ASHE KA
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND

13 BURHERRAMEBHRRET-FER

COMPANY BER*ELAF
Group Company
rEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
=B-=Ff ~—T-—_—H% ZB-=Ff %
Us$'000 us$'o000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET SEEm FET
Trade receivables from ERE=FTEZEXR
third parties -
Trade receivables from a El—2BRBEA
related party (Note 34(d)) T E SR (s
34(d)) _
Less: provision for B FEIE 5 RR R
impairment of AR
trade receivables (1,609) -
Trade receivables — net FEWE SRR —F 8 -
Prepayments TERT IR 1,811
Other receivables H b FE YRR 16
1,827
Less: non-current portion of 3 : E i fE Y 7k 18 ~
other receivables BN -
Current portion BN EREB 12 1,827

As at 31 December 2013, all non-current receivables are due
within five years from the end of the year (2012: same).

The fair values of trade and other receivables are as follows:

R-ZE—=F+_-A=+—H &3
Hipe W RN EE B R FERNRIE (=
T——F :HR) -

FEU R B RN H A R R IR 2 A AN

T
Group Company
TEE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —T——-—F Z—ZE—-=F —ET——-F
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FTET FEx TFETT FET
Trade receivables — net JEMWE SR — 55 -
Other receivables H b fE W SR IB 16
16
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BURSEZRRHMEKZE-F%
COMPANY (continued) BRFxT (#)
The fair values of other receivables are based on cash flows HERRIEZ A FESERAI12.0E (=
discounted using the effective interest rate of 12.0% (2012: Z-_F:1R20B) 2ERMEFR RS
12.0%). This discount rate reflects the WACC of the Group. MEAEEFE ZPHAERRMALEERZ
IIHE T E AR A o
2013 2012
—EB-=5F —E——F
uUs$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties BURE=ZFESER 43,207
Trade receivables from a related party Bl — 2B REEAT
BHBER 105
Less: provision for impairment of W FEIE SRR
trade receivables AR (1,609)
Trade receivables - net EREZER—FHE 41,703

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days and the ageing of the trade receivables
based on invoice date is as follows:

EUWRE ZERZEEHHEERNEZ60
K MERESERILZEZAHZRRD
o

0 - 30 days 0E30K

31 - 90 days 31E290K
91 — 180 days 91E 180K
181 — 365 days 181E365K
Over 365 days 365K £

Group

rEEH
2013 2012
—E-=fF —ET——4F
Us$'000 Us$'000
TER TET
36,841
2,891
1,808
36
1,736
43,312

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of US$26,780,000
(2012: US$30,067,000) were fully performing.
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R—_EBE—=ZF+-_A=Z+—8"
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND

COMPANY (continued)

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of US$3,961,000
(2012: US$11,336,000) were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and, based
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not

impaired receivables is as follows:

13

BEBAEREEMERRE-XE
EREAF (&)

W—ZE—=%F+=-A=+—H" 3,961,000
E0 (ZF— % :11,336,0005%7T) ZJE
WESERCINHERAEEARE R
RIEHEETWESANBRRNSE 2 BLRP
B BERBATLR SHRERER
A B R o 2 B BB I KR E 2 FE W SR8
ZHRESWIT

Overdue by
0 - 90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

pill
0E90K
91£ 180K
180K +

Group

A EMm
2013 2012
—EBE—=5F —E—-—F
Us$°000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
9,668
1,664
4
11,336

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of US$1,736,000
(2012: US$1,909,000) were considered impaired. The amount
of the provision made was US$1,736,000 as of 31 December
2013 (2012: US$1,609,000). The ageing of these receivables is

W-ZT—=%+—-HF=+—H" 1,736,000
Ex(=ZZF—=%:1,909,000%7T) 2 E
WESERBEBAECRE- R —=
F+ZA=1+—HBHELNBESLER

as follows: 1,736,000% 7T (= F — =4 : 1,609,000
ETT) c ZFEWHIBHRE ST -
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
2= —E——fF
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPESTE FET
Overdue by 60 HA
0 - 90 days 0E90K 158
91 — 180 days 91E 180K -
181 — 365 days 181%365K -
Over 365 days 365K A 1,751
1,909
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13
COMPANY (continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Pl 52 59 5 Bk e 3¢ A B M 3 0 — &5 5K
ERFAT (&)

PR 585 3R B R BOE 2 R 1
TR

Group Company

REE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
=E2E—=F ~—T-—F ZEB-Z=Zf —T—_F

US$'000
TER

Vietnam Dong MR A
us$ eV

New Taiwan dollar e
Renminbi AR

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
TET TXn TXT

1,744
83

1,827

R B2 KR 5 R SO B B R 2 B )
wmF

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Wn—H—H 1,383

Provision for receivables impairment FEUGRIB R B R

(Note 22) (BF5E22) 229
Unused amounts reversed (Note 22) BEREARBESE (ME22) (3)
At 31 December R+ZRA=+—A~ 1,609

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement (Note 22). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH -
GROUP AND COMPANY

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits

Bank balances totalling US$10,506,000 (2012:
Us$13,086,000) and US$28,333,000 (2012:
US$32,628,000) as at 31 December 2013 were mainly
placed with major state-owned financial institutions in
the PRC and Vietnam respectively. The remittance of
these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam is subject to

exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese

(a)

14 BHe&RBeEFHM GSHRTERR
ZERHFRS-FKERFELF

RERASE/YRERBRTER

WZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
R1TA #4 10,506,000 7T (=
T — % :13,086,000Ek )M
28,333,000 T (=& — =%
32,628,000 7T ) 7 Bl 7 A A B K
ENFEERAEHEEE ZEESE
£ AR B Rt g 78 5 ST R B R

governments. JiF 89 HINGE & 1 #5866
Group Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=Ff —T——_F =ZB—=% —T—_F
uss$‘000 Us$'000 us$’000 Us$'000
FERT F=ET FEx FET
Short-term bank [RB|EAH "R
deposits with original =EAZEHR
maturity over three TR
months 2,005
Cash at bank and on RITREFRS
hand 1,560
3,565

The Group's and the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEARBZHERIREFHE
WEEHIRITERIRA T EREHE

Group Company
KEE PN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F - ZB-=Ff —ZT—-F
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTER TET TER TET
Vietnam Dong WEE _
UsS dollar e 1,175
Renminbi ARY 2,027
Hong Kong dollar T 89
New Taiwan dollar e 274
3,565
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM 14 Be&RBASEEYD HHETERR
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH - ZRIRE-TRKERELF (8)
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank (a) BHERBRESESEYEREHRITER
deposits (continued) (%)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the REBEEAR - NEEZ BERERER
end of the reporting period were as follows. AT e
Group Company
rEH KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
=E—=f T ZEB-Z=f —T—_-F%
US$’000 us$'o00 US$000 Us$'000
FE5x FxT FEx FET
Short-term bank REEB ARG
deposits with =@ AZREH
original maturity over RITER
three months 7.8% 2.8%

(b) Restricted cash
As at 31 December 2013, US$4,264,000 (2012: nil) are
restricted deposits denominated in Renminbi held at bank

as reserve for serving of a bank borrowing (Note 35).

(b)

15 SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY

FRFIARS
R—_E—ZF+-_A=Z=+—8"
4,264,000 (T ——F 1 &)
AREREERITEBEZREME
MR RIT 2 ARBEGTE SR H7F 5%
(HMf&E35) °

15 BA-AKAEEERAQTF

Authorised ordinary shares

EEEBER
Par value
uss$ Number of
HE shares US$°000
E RGEE FER
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=4F
31 December 2012 ZA=+—HK
—E-CF+ZA=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
BITRBEEBER
Par value
uss$ Number of
HE shares US$°000
EY R4 EE FER
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=4F
31 December 2012 —A=+—8k
—E—C—F+=ZHA=+—H 0.01  1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 16 FE-FKERFLF
(a) Group (a) *=£HE
Merger
Share Exchange reserve Retained
premium reserve (Note) earnings Total
EEiR 1]
RBEE EXRE (PEE) REER “m
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET TET FET TEL FET
At 1 January 2012 RZZ——F—H—H 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 256,610
Comprehensive income  ZE YA
Profit for the year REF T - - - 7,342 7,342
Other comprehensive ~ Hft2EKA
income
Exchange translation EHEE
differences - 170 - - 170

Total comprehensive 2EBAEE

income - 170 - 7,342 7,512
Total transaction BEBAZERZE

with owners
Dividends paid relating “E—fRIT-CF

t0 2011 and 2012 THREZENRE

interim period - - - (6,940) (6,940)
At 31 December 2012 RZ_Z——F+-A=+—H 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 257,182
Representing: gl
Proposed 2012 BERkAz-E—=F

Final dividend REME 2,205
Others Hit 112,187
Retained earnings RZE-ZF+ZA=t—Hx

as at 31 December 2012 RE & T 114,392
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16 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

(@) Group (continued)

16 REM-—FRERFLF
() #%ME (&)

Merger
Share Exchange reserve Retained
Premium Reserve (Note) earnings Total
AR
RO RE E R fE (HaE) REEHN #e
US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000
T TET TER TER TE£n

At 1 January 2013 RZZE-Z5-f—-H
Comprehensive income  ZE WA
Profit for the year AEEZ T
Other comprehensive ~ H2HEWA
income
Exchange translation EHEE
differences
Total comprehensive 2HRALE
income
Total transaction BREEAZARZE
with owners
Dividends paid relating ZT-ZERZT-=F%
t0 2012 and 2013 THREZENRE

interim period

At 31 December 2013

Representing: B

Proposed 2013 BERA2-ZE—=F
Final dividend KERE

Others Hit

RZB-Z#+-A=t-H2
RERM

Retained earnings
as at 31 December 2013

Note:

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.
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16 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 16 RF-FRERELF (#])

(b) Company (b) &2AF
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B3R E ERE REEF WM
US$'000 US$'000 us$'000 US$'000
FTET FET TErx TEr
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—f—H 194,098 50 17,089 211,237
Comprehensive income 2 HE U A
Profit for the year REEHEH - - 8,634 8,634
Other comprehensive ~ Hfh 2@ A
income
Exchange translation fE N ERE
difference - 38 - 38
Total comprehensive 2EKRALE
income - 38 8,634 8,672
Total transaction HEBAZERZE
with owners
Dividends paid relating ~—Z——F R -T— 4
t0 2011 and 2012 TEEBZENRE
interim period - - (6,940) (6,940)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+-A=+—H 194,098 88 18,783 212,969
Representing: Bp
Proposed 2012 Final BRERNZ-_F—ZF
dividend REIP R 2,205
Others Hi 16,578
Retained earnings RZE——F+_H
as at 31 December 2012 =+—HZRERF 18,783
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16 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 16 Effi—FEERFELTF ()

(b) Company (continued)

Share
premium
B3R E

US$’000
FTEx

At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=%—-H—H
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year AEEERE
Other comprehensive  Hft2HEEE
loss
Exchange translation X EH
difference

Total comprehensive 2HBALE

income

Total transaction HEBAZHBRZE
with owners

Dividends paid relating —E——FRK-T—=4
to 2012 and 2013 HEEECENRE

interim period

At 31 December 2013 WZE—=F+-A4

=+—H
Representing: Bp
Proposed 2013 Final RERNZ-ZF—Z=F
dividend REIRR B
Others HAth
Retained earnings R-ZZE—=ZF+=A

as at 31 December 2013 =+—HB 2 RE BT

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

116 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk £ B} (328%) BRA T

(b) A=27F (&)

Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
B 5 i 65 RE 2 A e
Us$'000 US$'000 US$’000

FEr TR FXR

REREHERAE(ZTET=F
ERTAR) 341G R A A RAB A =24
A AR A H) B 5 B R R TR
R HEAREABBEGEENAIFAA
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP AND

177 ENRSERRAMEMRE-FER

COMPANY BERENF
Group Company
rEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F - ZB-=%f —T—=F
Us$’000 us$'o000 Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET FTEx FET
Trade payables B SRR -
Accruals i EA 594
Other payables H 4th FE 1~ FR0E 1,002
1,596

At 31 December 2013, the ageing of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

R-_ZEZ—=F+-_A=+—H ENHESH
RRIRRZEAZEROTOT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_4F
Us$'000
FET

Us$'000
TXx

0 — 30 days 0E30K

31 - 90 days 31E90K
91 — 180 days 912 180K
181 - 365 days 181E365K
Over 365 days 365K A =

18,978
3,921
170

3

41

23,113

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
trade and other payables are denominated in the following

AEBEARRIZENE SRR R EMRE
NBCRREER T EHEHE:

currencies:
Group Company
AEE b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F T ZB-=F —T——F
Us$'000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Vietnam Dong WA _
us$ FEIT 859
New Taiwan Dollar e 737
Renminbi AR -
1,596

Annual Report 2013 £3§ 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

18 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

18 RITEE-FKERFLF

Group Company
rEH b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F T ZB-=%f —T——F
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=T FET FET
Non-current I BN HA
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured —FBHEA
(Notes 33 and 35) (Ff5£33%35) -
— unsecured — A _
Current BPEA
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured —FHEMA
(Notes 33 and 35) (Hf£33535) -
— unsecured — A 4,030
4,030
Total bank borrowings RITEERE 4,030
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s bank RZE—Z=F+-_A=+—0 X%
borrowings were repayable as follows: RABZRITEEER AT BAEEE
Group Company
rEH b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T ZB-=%f —ZT——-F
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FE5x F=T FEx FET
Within 1 year —FR 4,030
Between 1 and 2 years —FEEMEF -
Between 2 and 5 years MEZERF -
Over 5 years AFENUE -
4,030
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18 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 18 HITHE-FTKBERELF ()

(continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

B3R R SR 7 58 B AR 0 1 B R
BROTENTEABNT:

Group Company
REE ARF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F - FT——-—F ZEB-=F —_E——F

Uss$'000
TXR

Within 6 months 618 A K
Between 7 and 12 months ~ 7& 1218 A
Between 1 and 5 years 1854

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current
borrowings are as follows:

Us$'000 Us$’'000 Us$'000
TET FTXr TET

FRBEEZERMERQAFENT

Group Company

rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=Ff —_T-_-F =B-=% —_T=F%

Uss$’000
FER

Carrying amount BREE
Fair value NS

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying
amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The fair
values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based
on the borrowing rate of 3.5% (2012: 3.6%) and are within
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate
their fair values.

Us$'000 US$’'000 Us$'000
TET FTXr TET

HRITRFETK BHEE 2 AF(EA
HEREEARR - A FETAEEHN K358

“E-F36E)BHMEERNARLZ
HRemnFh TEBRAFEERZFE2H -

RHEREZREERELAFERE-
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18 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 18 HITHE-FTKBERELF ()

(continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

RBERR FEEEE 2 BERFEMNERN
T

2013 2012
—E—=fF T4
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ Dollar us$ Dollar
Xt b=l ETT e
Bank borrowings RITEE _ 2.7% 2.4%

The effective interest rates per annum of the Company’s
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

R|ERR AREHEE cBRENEMN
T

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——4F
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ Dollar us$ Dollar
==h il ET ek
Bank borrowings RITHEE _ 2.4% 2.4%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

A EE R A R A 2 AR TS
s

Group Company
AEE ¥ NN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —FT——-—F ZZEBE-—-=F —_ZE——-F
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEn FET FEIT FET
us$ EY 3,000
New Taiwan dollar =X 1,030
4,030
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18 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 18 SHRITEE-FKEARFLF (&)
(continued)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REEBEUTRZABERE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Floating rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—FRNE 51,150
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 2 5 -
Fixed rate: EB
— Expiring within one year — R —F R H 27,598
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&EIH 7,333
86,081
19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 19 EEMRTBM-—FEE
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary BEEFEHREEEEARNEER L EM
differences under the liability method using the principal tax FHRERN T EN A TR ZET
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BLEMEHEEREBBEZONHET
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E—_4F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Deferred income tax assets: BEMBHEE:
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 151218 A& Uk 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMBHEE (58)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEMBHARE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — #1218 A& Uk 2
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFSHEaE 6,180
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFTSH BEFRE 6,122
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as BEFSHEREEHEENT
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=£f —E——4F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEr FET
At 1 January Hn—A—H 6,496
Income statement credit (Note 24) FrAME K (Mf5E24) (374)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 6,122
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19

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

19

RIEFRSR-A%KE (#)

REFRLEMEHREERBE (R RE
58 AR R B RUARE R B 45 80 AT) M 2 Bh 1
T

EEFRSHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEHERTE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—RA—H 7,142 7,519
Credited to income statement FFAMEE (998) (377)
At 31 December wR+ZA=+—¢€ 6,144 7,142
Deferred income tax assets ELEFEHEE
Other temporary differences
Htt =5
2013 2012
—EB-=F —T=F
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
At 1 January n—A—H (1,020) (1,023)
Charged to income statement kB W& 233 3
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H (787) (1,020)

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
profits of the PRC subsidiary of the Group derived since 1
January 2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate
of 10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors. Deferred income tax liabilities of US$858,000 (2012:
US$787,000) have not been recognised in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy
of these PRC subsidiaries it is probable that these temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$26,795,000 (2012: US$23,468,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.
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RIBFPECEMGBRE NEEETH
BB ARBE - NF—F—BREE
B3 F) - B 2R TONRILE E 80 FliR
10% BT R MTEINFL o AR RS BIE S|
ZEPEMBRARZRERSK  BAEME
FREMBARZRNEMNELR 2 EREER
TARPTRER ] R G 2RBEE - iR k% &
S M R RIE IE B8 & f&5858,000%
T (ZZE—_4% :787,000%7T) °

BEEMEBREEDNABRENEATSE
BARERHR ENEHRSRMEED
MEBBRELER AEEARERM
7% E51826,795,000% 0 (=T — —F:
23,468,000 7T ) 7] 45 82 LUK 85 oK SR FE 2R
MBA -ZERBEBER—FERFMH
FHg .
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20 REVENUE

20

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenues recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 were
US$342,453,000 and US$372,922,000 respectively.

21 OTHER GAINS - NET

21

2
AEBEREREEEERRAMA - £
CERMEAERM IXES 2EEH
B BERES KB R ERB R
B-BEZZT—=FR-_FT—ZF+=
A=+ BLFEBERZVRED R A
342,453,000% 5T 372,922,000 T ©

Hthl  (BiR) — 28
2013 2012
—E-—=£F —E-—F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEr FET

Net exchange (loss)/gain

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Sale of scrap materials

Others

B (BR),asF
HEME BB MR

(E18) s
R 35 &
Hity

137

68
345
66

616
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22 EXPENSES BY NATURE 22 BHUHEESBEZRAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HEXRK HERDHAI RITHAZE
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BIEZHRISTET
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
US$°000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Changes in inventories and FERERERERE
consumables used (Notes 12) (FMF3E12) 271,912
Amortisation of intangible assets (Notes 8) £ 2 & EE#4Y (Hf5E8) 1,459
Amortisation of land use rights (Notes 6) s {55 PR M 8 (B[ EE6) 51
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B & 350
Depreciation on property, W BEREETE
plant and equipment (Notes 7) CEYS 23,279
Impairment charge on property, W BB RRERERS
plant and equipment (Notes 7) (K3E7) 322
Impairment charge on intangible assets BREERBERX
(Notes 8) (PfF7E8) 344
Operating leases expenses in respect of BEMAELEEROZ
leasehold land 3 171
Employee benefit expenses (Notes 28) EERAFZ (M5E28) 28,174
Net provision for impairment of trade FEWE ZIRFORE R TR
receivables (Notes 13) (FF5E13) 226
Other expenses H Az 37,488
Total cost of sales, selling and HERA  HE RS X
distribution expenses and RATH B @R
administrative expenses 363,776
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23 FINANCE INCOME - NET 23 HMBA-BE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——fF
Us$’000 Us$'000
Finance income — interest income on BB A — 52 #RER 1T
short-term bank deposits FRFEHA
Interest expense on bank borrowings IRITIEEFR BHAX
Amortisation of discount on long-term R —HEBEREATZ
payable to a related party REAIE T
Finance costs Bz
Finance income — net B E A — %8
No interest expenses on bank borrowings have been capitalised BEETEEZMNERINAFERER
under property, plant and equipment for current year (2012: EME BEMSEZERN(ZTE——4F:
Nil). ).
24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24 FRRWRAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated i K 8 B IR LG A 5T B AR B PR AR &
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing HeBEMEBRR 2 BRAMEGH-

in the countries in which the Group operates.

Annual Report 2013 3% 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 24

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

FRrisMB (#8)
REAWRAERAINB ZMEHEE:

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") ERER
Over-provision of income tax in BEFEMMSNBEEE

previous years

Total current tax BNERFE TEH 42 %8
Deferred income tax (Notes 19) EIEFTS R (KIEE19)

2013 2012
—E—=F B4
US$°000 Us$'000
SFEEm FET
3,787

3,787

(374)

3,413

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

ZRER B R FT AT 1S B AN a8 FI) 69 P 5 50 B2 i
RAREETENBAR - BrEKSHE
AHREMAENERRANEZRNT

2013 2012
—E-=fF —ET——4F
USs$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax B 354 Al s A 9,964
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% X AT R15%:TE 2
(2012: 15%) RBE(ZZ—Z%:
15% ) 1,495
Tax effects of different tax rates TRBEZ R G E (186)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes PRI 2 F X 1,504
Income not subject to tax BRI A -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A A ARG &SR
tax losses (71)
Over-provision in prior years BT FERBERE -
Tax losses arising for which no deferred FF S £ 1B 0 4 7 SRR E P
income tax asset was recognised SREEZHBES 671
Tax charge MIEX H 3,413

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.
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24

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations in
Vietnam range from 15% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

(iv) Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 17%.

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$8,177,000 (2012: profit of US$8,634,000).

24

25

iSRS (#8)

(i) M
BB AR BN ERFAETR]
B AEEEMEMNEBNERDZE
FTEMENT15%E25% °

(i) HE
AEEETHENEBKNERDEM
BHER25% °

(iii) g EHE
F AN 5= (B AN 4 3 4 AE R AN
REBRNAESEFTRRTOEN
PR bt 36 8 4 R 03 BB RS B
B

(iv) &8
REBESENEBOEACEAN
BHEBI1T% -

FOFHEAAEGRT

FFARDR R BHMEMN AR RS AEAS
E518 48,177,000 70 ( Z T — —F : % 7
8,634,0003% 7T ) ©

Annual Report 2013 3§ 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME
26 DIVIDENDS 26 B2
The dividends paid in 2013 and 2012 were US$3,741,000 ZE—=FRZIE-ZFZEMNBRES
(0.246 US cents per ordinary share) and US$6,940,000 (0.455 7l £3,741,000% 7T (&% & 38 JR0.2463%
US cents per ordinary share) respectively. The Board has 1ili) %26,940,0003% 7T ( & % & i@ §20.455
resolved not to recommend for shareholders’ approval at its W) - EFEFEABRTEZREREC
forthcoming annual general meeting the payment of a final T-=FF-A=1T—HIEFENRER
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 0.145 B(ZZ— % KR EHEKR0.145%1l)
US cents per ordinary share). IR REMEGRNRERAFAS LE
o
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F
US$°000 Us$'000
FXET FET
2013 interim dividend, paid of 0.101 ENf=ZZE—=FFHEKE
US cents (2012 interim: 0.144 US cents) kT mA%0.101 AL
per ordinary share (ZT—ZF7H:
0.144%11) 2,200
Proposed 2013 final dividend of — US cents ##k —Z—=ZF KK E
(2012: 0.145 US cents) per ordinary share B E EAROEN
-4
0.145% A1) 2,205
4,405
The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed RZE-=F R T _FHENEHIK
during 2013 and 2012 have been disclosed in the consolidated B 2R e RIBEEB D AHEBIN RS U
income statement in accordance with the disclosure RPHEE-

requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 HEREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BRERBFZARNARES AEG
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i FIBR DA A B B 17 3 8 IR /9 0 4
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHEETE -

during the year.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit attributable to owners of RABEB AEAGRA
the Company 7,342
Weighted average number of BT L mARME T E
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (AT &) 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREREF
(US cents per share) (FRZEM) 0.48
(b) Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per HE_T—=FR=-_FT—=-F+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+—HLFE HATEHET
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. B SR#ESRMNEGRERNRTINE

EE
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28

29

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

28

EREAMAXZ (BIEEEFM)

2013
—E—=fF —F—=

T& mE ko2
4T

Wages, basic salaries and allowances
Bonuses

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
Other employee benefits

Hit g B =AM

BRRE KA —E B KETE

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 12% to 25% (2012: 12% to 26%) of the basic salaries
predetermined by local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees. For the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group contributed approximately
US$649,000 (2012: US$613,000) to the aforesaid state-
sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes to
the scheme at a rate of 17% (2012: 17%) of the employee’s
salary. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is
responsible for the entire obligations payable to retired
employees. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
contributed approximately US$1,615,000 (2012: US$1,426,000)
to the aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.
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5B tF iim #l
BEPBEORBRBA NEEB SR EE
P IUR R FEBEERNERERNTE
HFGRIRFTEIE LR - AR EHZ S
ENEREREWRFRERE N T
[EHH12%E25% (ZFBE——F:12%%
26% ) c AR E P ARG BB B mIRIK
EEXNAARKEN BEZZT—=F
+TZA=+—RLEFE AEERLLER
REPE R IR IR 71 40649,000% 7T (=
T — 4 :613,000%7T) °

RIFHEAORA LAY AEEAUREE
EMEREHNES LS RETEIEL
R AREEZREEFHFEMII% (ZE—=
Fo17% ) Mt EED R BIRE W
HeRBIFEBEARKESRHEMSA
RE-HE-FT-—=F+-A=+—HIt
FE-AEEA EABREROTSRE
sHEIE 491,615,000k 0 (=T — — &
1,426,000%7T) °
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30
MANAGEMENT

(a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable
to the directors of the Company by the Group during the
year are as follows:

Fees e
Basic salaries and allowances [ & MOERL
Discretionary bonuses )15 2% BRAE 4T

EERSREEEMFH
(a) AFEALEBERAARREZENK
M EINREEINT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Us$’000 Us$'000
SFEETE FET
8
1,240
594
1,842

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments during the year (2012: Nil).

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

AEBARRAREETERETME
M(ZFE—=F:4&) -

RE-F-=#+-A=+-AL
FRAADEEFOHFHRTINT

Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
HipfE R
Name of Director ESf% he ¢ WERRRA (Ft) &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEL Txn Txn Txn
Executive Director BiES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEEEE - 280 - 13 293
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXAE - 150 - 13 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BN E - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABELE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung St - - - 12 12
Independent non-executive BUFGTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RARLE 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa WEREE 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen fEERE 2 - - 12 14
Total Ait 6 1,085 - 137 1,228
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EXEREREEBOFH (1)

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) (continued) (a) (&)

The remuneration of every director and senior HE_ZT-——_F+-_A=+—HL
management of the Company for the year ended 31 FEARAZEFRAAEEEN
December 2012 is set out below: FENEs T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
R
Name of Director E=fg he ¢  BERREA (M) =
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEn FEL FEr TEr T
Executive Director BIES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEELE 1 338 178 13 530
Mr. Yang, Cheng BIEXE - 200 12 13 225
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BRELE - 302 154 13 469
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 125 13 288
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou M EE - 125 125 13 263
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BBRLE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRARE 1 - - 12 13
Independent non-executive BIkHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEEEE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RAREE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa AEEEE - - - - -
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen fgExE 2 - - 12 14
Total At 8 1,115 594 125 1,842
Note: B 5
Other benefits include travelling allowance. Hib @A 53 ZE k2 -

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest (b) AEEAFERNRAEHRTMAL
in the Group for the year included five (2012: five) BEAE(ZE—ZF :A%)HT
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the B HEMNMNEEREXESZH
analysis presented above. e Bk o

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the () AFEVERAQNANES (BEASE
directors of the Company (includes the five highest paid ERZsERHTMAL) IHME  1E
individuals of the Group) as an inducement to join or as BREMARSEE R EE B
compensation for loss of office. S
There are no outstanding share options as at 31 RZE—=FR=ZFT—Z=-F+=A
December 2013 and 2012. =+ — BB EE R R RTTE
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EXERERETEEMTH (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Senior management remuneration by band (d) EHEEEMSEHE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FRATHE :
Number of individuals
A
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F—=
Emolument bands (in US$) Me&E (Ex)
US$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 JT - 105,000% 7T 6
US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,0013 7T — 130,000 7T 1
31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 ¥EBEEZR S
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax W BT 45 B0 A 9,964
Adjustments for: PUATIEE AE:
— Finance income — net (Note 23) — BB A
—FE (M3E23) (246)
— Share of post tax loss of an associate —JE(h — A& R AIRE
(Note 10) & &8 (MizE10) 44
— Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREETE
equipment (Note 7) (HI3E7) 23,279
— Provision for impairment of property, —¥%E BERZERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) B (HE7) 322
— Provision for impairment of intangible —BEEERBERE
assets (Note 8) (Hf5E8) 344
— Provision for impairment of trade —JEWE 5RO E RS
receivables (Note 13) (Bt5E13) 226
— Amortisation of intangible assets —\EEEE#E (MES)
(Note 8) 1,459
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)  — = 1 {55 F 4 4 85
(KizE6) 51
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEWE BEKR
plant and equipment (see below) &8, (M)
(RTx) (68)
— Gain on disposal of non-current assets —HERELEERD
held for sale (see below) AEME (RT3 -
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 RBEEZRS (W)
(continued)
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF
Us$’000 uUs$'000
FTEx FET
35,375
Change in working capital (excluding LEESH
the effects of exchange differences on (REt4rEHRE
consolidation) EACEREZBETE)
— Inventories -8 4,242
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —FEWE SRR
other receivables TEfTRRIE &
E th fE 3R 1E (7,140)
— Trade payables, accruals and —ERNE SRR
other payables EsrERA R
H AR IR 2,160
- Net changes in balances with —HEREATIREZ
related companies gE)FE 26
Cash (used in)/generated from operations %% (Fif)E4 2HE 34,663
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale FixeRenERN LEWE BEK
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held BERSELEFRRBEE Z G HIED
for sales comprise: T
2013 2012
—_E-=F —E——F
US$°000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFE (MFE7) 701
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEME WER&E
and equipment (Note 21) (B518) Mz
(KF&r21) 68
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEME BERZERE
equipment IA 769
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —T—_4F
Us$’000 Us$’000
FEx FET

Net book amount BRMEFE

Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIELEFRDEEL
held for sale (Note 7(i)) Wz (BEE7())

Proceeds from sale of non-current HEFIELEERDEEZ
assets held for sale Fris 38

134 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BB (328%) AR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

32 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

32

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Contracted but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in an associate (Note)

ERIAEREME
M- WE MR E
R—RABERRZRE

(P EE)

i
(a) EAREIE
AEBRFEHRETNVERELE
ZEARTHIAT
2013 2012
—E—=5F —ET-—F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
868
3,112
3,980

Note:

Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10.

Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

B
1R BB 1 O -
(b) SEANEE

AEERBETATBBELLHEORL
WREBFARARINOKEEE

No later than one year

Later than one year and no later
than five years

Later than five years

—FR
—FRELFA

hFi&

SIBBRMT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
121
456
2,797
3,374
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$92,300,000
(2012: US$99,300,000) of which US$60,244,000 (2012:
US$70,111,000) has not been utilised.

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Company as at 31
December 2013:

Related party
BFBHEAL

33 ERARE
WZFE-—=F+ZA=+—-8B &
NElBEWB AR ZRITEBERMEE
fR3#92,300,000E( L (=T — = F:
99,300,0003 7T ) * H #60,244,0003 7T
— T —_4:70,111,000%7T) MK B
}Eﬁo

34 BRAZEALTES
@) TR =T —=F+= A
—t—HZEBEALRHEEAN

AIM B R MEE

Relationship with the Company
BRZN 4 B K B R

Taiwan Vedan

A substantial shareholder of the Company

BB RAFRHEERR
Dacin Holdings (Pte) Ltd. A subsidiary of an associate of the Company
EMERAER AR AN\ — A R BRI B A A
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAKBEAEXBPETHNERE
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as @A
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F—=
Note US$'000 us$'000
k=g FER FExT
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan mAagrRiEEEm 0) 2,865 2,875
Technological support fee paid to A & /&K fF 3 4 17
Taiwan Vedan XERE (ii) 2,268 2,234
Agency commission income A A 8 IR T EL
received from Taiwan Vedan RIBFEE A (i) 25 18
Notes: P 5
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RARBEERRABHEEANLIE
the related parties were conducted in the normal course of R HERTEAEEERET
business.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the
terms of underlying agreements.
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(continued) 3 FREALES (#)
() Key management compensation () FEEBAEMS
The compensation paid or payable to key management, ENSENEEEEAS (BIEME
including all executive directors and senior management, BITEERSNERE) 2 EERD
for employee services is shown below. FENEL DT -
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Salaries and other short-term FREMEHES R
employee benefits 2,578
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) EBEEBEEALIZERESH
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following RZE—=F+"_A=+—HB &%
significant balances with the related parties: EHEBHEEATZEFEFEARNOT:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 3 FE FET
Current: RNER
Trade receivable from Taiwan FEEEKRAE S
Vedan (Note 13) AR (MEE13) (i) 105
Other receivable from Taiwan Hib g e &
Vedan BR fF 5118 ) 9
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan e a2k HIE ) (323)
Short-term loan to Dacin Holdings  #5 FiZRIER AR A &
(Pte) Ltd. ZHEHER (if) -
Notes: MsE:
(i) All these balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, (i BERSHAE &% AEIER -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of payment. REREETERM-
(i) The balance with Dacin Holdings (Pte) Ltd. is unsecured, iy BHEMERERARZEHAE
carries an interest of 3.5% per annum and is repayable on IR EFERISER B WER
16 September 2014. ZT-MFERATARBEER-
35 BANKING FACILITIES 35 SRITESH
Save as disclosed in Notes 18 and 33 to the financial BB RS SRR B sE18 33 AT 4 BB & A
statements, the Group’s bank borrowings of US$36,066,000 as AREEBRZ_Z-—=F+=-A=+—
at 31 December 2013 (2012: US$29,189,000) were secured by H2#7fEE36,066,000 L (=%
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and — — % :29,189,000%k jt) M R @ F
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately fE#)15,058,000EF L (=T — = F:
US$15,058,000 (2012: US$19,157,000) and the Group's 19,157,000% 70 ) 2 & T A K B Y % - K
restricted cash (Note 14) of approximately US$4,264,000 (2012: B RRE (K 5E7) 2 A e fE L R -

nil).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

TFHBME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-A=+—HLEFEGRAEER

DECEMBER
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—EBE—=F —ZT——F —T——F —ZT-ZFTF —IZTTNF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FE FET FET FET F=ET
Revenue Uy #& 372,922 382,900 336,107 289,137
Profit before income tax B&FriS®i Al 7 9,964 11,021 1,955 23,028
Income tax expense FT 15 %1 2 (3,413) (5,084) (4,582) (5,234)
Profit/(loss)attributable A2 &
to owners of wa A
the Company FEAE = R
(E18) 7,342 7,902 (1,480) 17,983
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-BA=1+—HHBEEERAR
DECEMBER
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B2—=f —ZT——-F ZET——F —ZT-ZFTF ZZZTTNF
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Total assets BEBE 353,729 361,367 370,876 357,619
Total liabilities B EREE (82,329) (89,746) (104,700) (85,968)
Total equity A 271,400 271,621 266,176 271,651
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Reference for Shareholders

BRRSEEHR

Place of Listing

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Stock Code
HKEX 02317
Access to Bloombeg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value Us$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

31 December, 2013
25 March, 2014
20 May, 2014

Bslip:i

& 49 R 5%

B 22 BT
A
B& 335 4t AR T
BEEHM
&
LHEE
MBETEE
EEERE

2FEEERMH
RERBAFARE

B PR

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

0.01%7T
AT

—F-Zf+-A=+-8
—2-mE=A=+HA
—HmHERA-+A

In the last week of
August, 2014*

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

(with effect from 31 March 2014)
26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

(up to 30 March 2014)
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

THEIREQMH

* BIFEE

B R BR 5
ERAEERNEFREL2EH -
ZEBBEMBFELDE:

BEE
BB
EFRER1835K

& A 02218
(ZE—WFE=ZA=+—B4%)
EEET

ERKNBER28%
B IE R 02612
(ZZZ—MF=A=+H)
B (852) 2980 1768

{8 : (852) 2528 3158

REARRA

FREARARMDZ AL HEHOH4

MEBEMBPETIE -
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Investor Relations

REEBRE

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis on maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
a total of 25 one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with major
international institutional investors including BOCI Securities, CCB
International, DBS Vickers and Standard Chartered Bank, among
others, employing all the different important channels to nurture
good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has published
its announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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T25RERNREEGENERSH EDREE
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EHLEHERERYL “&é%%“*fﬁl
MEMEM NAREENTE - ARELR:

http.//Www.vedan|nternat|ona|.com °
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www.vedaninternational.com
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Vedan International (Holdings) Limited
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